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1. Provide a copy of all current agreements and contracts between Lancaster
and Garrard Association.

A copy of the Water Rate Agreement between the City of Lancaster and the Garrard
County Water Association dated June 5, 2008 is enclosed following Tab 1.

2. Describe in detail all calculations used in determining the proposed
wholesale rate.

A description of all calculations used in determining the proposed wholesale rate,
prepared by Municipal and Financial Services Group, is enclosed following Tab 2.

3. Provide copies of the most recent cost-of-service analysis and
management analysis for Lancaster’s water system.

A copy of the most recent wholesale water rate cost of service study, prepare by
Municipal and Financial Services Group, is enclosed following Tab 3.

4. Provide a copy of the city’s resolution authorizing Lancaster to charge the
wholesale rate to Garrard Association.

The Lancaster City Council has not previously adopted resolutions authorizing water
rates to wholesale customers. However, a draft resolution authorizing the proposed
rates has been prepared and will be submitted to the Lancaster City Council for their
consideration at their regularly scheduled meeting in August 2009. A copy of this draft
resolution is enclosed following Tab 4. Once the resolution has been passed, an
approved copy will be provided to all parties to Case No. 2009-00230.



5. Provide the independent auditor’s report for Lancaster’s water operations,
shown separately from any joint ventures for the last two fiscal years.

A copy of the Independent Auditor's Report for Lancaster's water operations for the year
ended June 30, 2008, prepared by Critchfield & Critchfield, is enclosed following Tab 5.

A copy of the Independent Auditor's Report for Lancaster’s water operations for the year
ended June 30, 2007, prepared by Mulligan Hill Clements & Co., is also enclosed
following Tab 5.

6. State the test period on which the proposed wholesale water rate is based.

The cost of service analysis uses a forecasted test period of July 1, 2009 through June
30, 2010 on which the proposed wholesale water rate is based. The forecasted test
period expenses were developed using audited expenses incurred during July 1, 2007
through June 30, 2008 adjusted for known and measurable changes.

7. Provide the general ledgers for the water operations for the proposed test
period and the most recently concluded fiscal year. These general ledgers shall
include all check registers and spreadsheets used to record and track financial
transactions.

The projected general ledger components for the water operations for the proposed test
year are contained in the cost of service study, on these schedules enclosed following
Tab 3:

Schedule 1 Operating and Maintenance Expenses
Schedule 2 Existing Debt Service

Schedule 3 Capital Improvement Projects

Schedule 4 Projected Debt Service

Schedule 5 Interest income and Miscellaneous Revenue

A detailed general ledger trial balance for the water operations for the most recently
concluded fiscal year is enclosed on two copies following Tab 7. A summary general
ledger trial balance for the most recently concluded fiscal year is enclosed on the
remaining six copies following Tab 7.

A check register for the most recently concluded fiscal year is also enclosed following
Tab 7.

8. For each outstanding revenue issuance related to Lancaster’s water
operations, provide:

The City of Lancaster Water System has four United States Department of Agriculture
Rural Development bond issues outstanding: Series 1976, Series 2000, Series 2005A,
and Series 2005B.



The City of Lancaster Water System has one loan outstanding: Kentucky Infrastructure
Authority 1995 Loan #93-06.

Also, the City of Lancaster intends to fund its Phase Il Water System Improvements of
$2,537,500 during 2009 through a USDA grant for $1,015,000 or 40% of the total and
through the Series 2009 bonds for $1,522,000 or 60% of the total. The Series 2009
bonds will be issued for 30 years with an interest rate of 2.75%.

a. The bond ordinance or resolution authorizing the issuance of the
revenue bonds.

The bond ordinance for Series 1976 bonds is enclosed following Tab 8.

The supporting documents for the KIA 1995 loan could not be located in time for the
July 31, 2009 deadline. Copies of the loan documents will be requested from the
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority.

The bond ordinance for Series 2000 bonds is also enclosed following Tab 8.

The Series 2005A and 2005B bonds were additional bonds issued under the Bond
Ordinance for the Series of 2000.

b. An amortization schedule.
The amortization schedule for the Series 1976 bonds, Series 2005A bonds, and Series
2005B bonds is enclosed following Tab 8. (This amortization schedule is from the
audited financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2007.)
The amortization schedule for the KIA 1995 loan is also enclosed following Tab 8.
The amortization schedule for the Series 2000 bonds is also enclosed following Tab 8.

c. A detailed explanation as to why the debt was incurred.

The Series 1976 bonds were issued to construct an elevated storage tank and related
system improvements.

The KIA 1995 loan was issued to construct water treatment plant improvements.
The Series 2000 bonds were issued to construct a raw water transmission main.

The Series 2005A bonds were issued to construct transmission and distribution system
improvements.



The Series 2005 B bonds were also issued to construct tfransmission and distribution
system improvements.

The Series 2009 bonds will be issued to fund a portion of the Phase |l Water System
Improvements.

d. A calculation of the annual debt service payment for each of the next
three years. Show each component of the calculation separately.

A calculation of the annual debt service payment for each of the next three years is
enclosed following Tab 9.

9. Provide a detailed depreciation schedule for the water division.

A detailed depreciation schedule for Lancaster's water operations for the period ending
June 30, 2008 is enclosed following Tab 9. Note that the cost of service study does not
allocate any depreciation expense to wholesale customers.

10. Provide an adjusted trial balance and audit adjustments for the proposed
test period and the most recently completed fiscal year. The trial balance shall be
traced and referenced directly to the general ledgers request in ltem 7 above.

The projected general ledger components for the water operations for the proposed test
year are contained in the cost of service study, on these schedules enclosed following
Tab 3:

Schedule 1 Operating and Maintenance Expenses
Schedule 2 Existing Debt Service

Schedule 3 Capital Improvement Projects

Schedule 4 Projected Debt Service

Schedule 5 Interest Income and Miscellaneous Revenue

A detailed general ledger trial balance for the water operations for the most recently
concluded fiscal year is enclosed on two copies following Tab 7. A summary general
ledger trial balance for the most recently concluded fiscal year is enclosed on the
remaining six copies following Tab 7.

The trial balance for the proposed test period and the most recently completed fiscal
year are traced and referenced in item 11 below.

11. For Lancaster’s water operations, provide a reconciliation for any
differences between the test period trial balance, the most recent audit report,
and the cost-of-service study on which the proposed wholesale rate is base.

A reconciliation for differences greater than +/- $500 between the test period trial
balance and the most recent audit report are referenced in the analysis following Tab



11. Differences less than +/- $500 between the test period trial balance and the cost-of-
service study are incidental inflationary increases. There are no differences between
the test period trial balance and the cost-of-service study.

This response to Information Requested in Appendix to an Order of the Kentucky Public
Service Commission in Case No. 2009-00230 dated June 26, 2009 was prepared under
the supervision of Donald P. Rinthen, Mayor, on behalf of the City of Lancaster and is
true and accurate to the best of his knowledge, information, and belief formed after a
reasonable inquiry.

Q/Z » PrAG-0%

Donald P. Rinthen;Mayor Date

Attested by:

N Z 909

Shari Cane, City Clerk Date
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Water .Rate;Agreement

This Agreement made and entered into this 5% day of June, 2008, by and
between the City of Lancaster, referred to herein as the “City”, and the Garrard County
Water Association, referred to herein as the “Association”.

Witnesseth: That whereas by a contract dated March 25, 1970, an arrangement
was made that the rate to be charged for water supplied by the City to the Association
would be subject to modification every five years based on a demonstrable increase in the

cost of performance, such cost not to include increased capitalization of the Lancaster
system.

That whereas this time period was shortened to one year by subsequent agreements and
that the latest one year agreement expires at the close of the day on June 30, 2008 and
whereas this latest one year agreement introduced the concept of a guaranteed minimum
purchase by the Association from the City.

Now, therefore, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. That the original five year pricing period will continue to be shortened to one

year.

2. That the rate charged by the City for water supplied to the Association will
increase to $1.88 per thousand gallons for the next year. There will be a
Kentucky River Fee of $.088 added. If there is an increase in the Kentucky
River Fee it will be passed on to the purchaser in the next billing cycle after
becoming effective. The increased rate is to take effect on July 1, 2008. This
agreement will remain in effect to June 30, 2009.

3. The Association agrees to a minimum purchase amount to 200 million gallons
per year.

4. That the costs and methodology used to arrive at the price increase noted
above will be reviewed in 2009 by an independent third party to identify any
need for an increase or decrease in wholesale rates.

5. All other provisions of the original contract between the parties will remain in
full force and effect.

N}

Witness our Signatures to duplicate copies hereof this 5% day of June, 2008,
ty,Water Assgetation

City of Lapcas n : ;
By@w , Mayor //4//% . President

4’( / . . » 4 ! - 'J
Attest 7{% Attest /4/ 4/-'

-
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APPENDIX

Water and Sewer Cost of Service Model consisting of the following schedules:

Index

Control Panel

Schedule 9 Wholesale Water Rate Alternative - Utility Basis
Schedule 10 Cash Flow
The schedules highlighted in are the primary components of the rate model..

The Index is provided to aid navigation between the schedules by providing a hyperlink to each of
the other schedules. (Note that each schedule has a hyperlink in the upper left corner to return to the
Index.) The Control Panel allows for entry of assumptions for future inflation rates, interest rates,
and water consumption growth rates. The remaining schedules are provided for projecting
alternative rates using the utility basis method and cash flows over the next ten years.



A. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This document was prepared to summarize the work performed by the Municipal & Financial
Services Group (MFSG) during the wholesale water cost of service study authorized by the City of
Lancaster, KY. The study is predicated on the use of a cash flow analysis to support the pricing of
utility services. The cost of service analysis uses a forecasted test period of Fiscal Year 2009-2010.
This portion of the report summarizes the findings and recommendations developed during the
course of the study.

1. Findings

e Based on projected water sales, the current wholesale water rates will not produce
adequate revenues to cover the water system revenue requirements for Fiscal Year
2010 or the years following.

o The previous rate study methodology did not include recovery of debt service in the
wholesale water rates despite the benefit received by wholesale customers from debt-

financed assets. This resulted in recovery of those debt service costs retail customers
only.

e Using a future test year based upon audited financial results through June 30, 2008
adjusted for known and measurable changes, a proposed increase in wholesale water
rates from $1.88 to $2.10 will be required to fund a fair, just, and reasonable portion of
operating expenses of the water system.

e Due to the size of the rate increase, it may be prudent to phase in the rate increase over
two years.

e The City of Lancaster has planned capital investments in water treatment and
distribution system improvements which may require additional funding over time.

2. Recommendations

o The debt service costs for the water system should be distributed equitably between the
retail and wholesale customers.

o The City of Lancaster should increase wholesale water rates by 5.85%, from $1.88 to
$1.99, effective July 1, 2009.

o The City of Lancaster should increase wholesale water rates by 5.53%, from $1.99 to
$2.10 effective July 1, 2010.

o The City of Lancaster should consider an update to this rate study as the capital
improvement plans are constructed.

Municipal & Financial Services Group 1 City of Lancaster KY



B. BASIS FOR THE STUDY

1. Scope of Work

The purpose of the study was to support the Water Rate Agreement between the City of Lancaster
and the Garrard County Water Association to have an independent third party review the costs and
methodology in 2009 to identify any need for an increase or decrease in wholesale rates.

The scope of services set forth in the contract between the City of Lancaster and the Municipal and
Financial Services Group specified several related tasks:

Task 1.1 — Review Fxisting Data

Review prior studies and documentation, to formulate quickly an understanding of both the
letter and the spirit of the policies and procedures, which govern the construction and
operation of the City’s water system. The key data items required for the study included:

Most recent audited financial statements and estimated expenses;

e Known and measurable changes to the expenses as identified by City of Lancaster;
Total water production and sales information (including plant use water -
backwashing and flushing); and

e Total miles of transmission and distribution system.
Task 1.2 — Identify Water System Expenses

The most recent estimate by the City of Lancaster for expenses during July 1, 2009 through
June 30, 2010 served as the Test Year and the basis for the costs inputs in the wholesale
water rate analysis. The water system expenses were allocated to those related to pumping
and treatment, transmission and distribution, and customer. The costs identified for the Test
Year were also forecasted forward over a ten-year period to provide a forecast of water
system expenses. The expenses were forecasted at the account level to allow for each of the
categories of expenses to be increased at different inflation rates.

Task 1.3 — Water Production and Sales Analysis

Water production and sales information from the City was analyzed, including identification
of the amount of water used within the plant for backwashing and flushing. The comparison
of the water production to water sales allowed for determination of the City’s unaccounted
for or lost water. This information was used to determine a production factor for wholesale
water due to lost water. Additionally, based on discussions with the City staff, water
production and sales were forecasted over a ten-year period.

Task 1.4 — Determination of Allocation Factors

MFSG established factors to allow for allocation of costs to wholesale customers. Consistent
with the City’s current methodology for wholesale rates, we used the inch-mile method of

Municipal & Financial Services Group 2 City of Lancaster K'Y



allocating transmission costs. This method is predicated on allocating costs on the
proportionate use of jointly used water system facilities (wholesale vs. retail). We used the
standard approach of allocating production costs based on ratio of wholesale water sales to
total gallons sold. The outputs of this task were factors for production and treatment,
transmission and distribution, and customer related expenses.

Task 1.5 — Allocation of Costs to Wholesale
Each of the expense categories were multiplied by the allocation factors to determine the

total cost of providing wholesale water. The total cost of providing wholesale water was also
projected over the next ten-years based on the forecasted expenses.

Task 1.6 — Calculation of Wholesale Water Rate

The total cost of providing wholesale water was divided by the total wholesale water sales to
determine an appropriate wholesale water rate. The wholesale water rate was determined
for the Test Year and forecasted over a ten-year period.

MFSG has developed a financial model by which the City of Lancaster can project cash flows and
future wholesale water rates over a 10-year period using assumptions regarding operating expenses,
capital improvements, customer and usage growth rates, and other items.

2. Assumptions Used in the Study

The following assumptions were used to guide the cost of service analysis and were developed with
the assistance of the City of Lancaster staff:

The water system must be self-supporting. It is assumed that the costs of operating and
maintaining the water system must be fully supported by the water rates and charges
collected from water customers.

The costs of operating and maintaining the water system, including the cost of debt service,
must be distributed equitably between the retail and wholesale customers.

The wholesale water rates should be reviewed at least every two years.

In addition to the guiding assumption for the study, it is necessary to make several assumptions
regarding future economic conditions and growth to project future revenue requirements and
offsetting revenues from water rates. Assumptions made regarding various items which can be
varied as needed from year to year are shown below:

Element Amount
Inflation Rate — Water O&M Expenses 3.0%
Consumption Growth Rate — Water 1.0% initially, then flat

Municipal & Financial Services Group 3 City of Lancaster KY



Interest Rate on Borrowing 2.75%

Debt Maturity 30 years
Interest Earned on Investments 1.75%
Administration Costs on Financing 0%

These assumptions were used after discussions with the City’s staff, utilizing our experience and the
staff’s knowledge of its historical and future costs. The study was conducted using the most recent
estimate of expenses for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 (the City functions on a fiscal year of July 1 to June
30) as the base year upon which forecasted figures were developed. The cost of service analysis also

considers what wholesale water rates may need to be for the entire planning period (FY 2010 —
2020).

Municipal & Financial Services Group 4 City of Lancaster KY



C. METHOD FOR COMPUTING REVENUE REQUIREMENTS

1. Method for Computation of Revenue Requirements

The revenue requirement from user rates is the reasonable level of revenue required for a utility to
properly operate and maintain its system and meet its financial obligations. The Kentucky Public
Service Commission allows three different methods for computing the revenue requirement: Debt
Service Method, Operating Ratio Method, and Rate of Return Method. MFSG utilized the Debt
Service Method, which computes the revenue requirement as:

Adjusted Operating and Maintenance Expenses
+ Cash Funded Capital Improvements

+ Annual Debt Service Requirement

- Miscellaneous Revenues

+ Debt Service Coverage

= Total Revenue Requirement

Because the City of Lancaster has level debt service payments, the annual debt service requirement
for the test year was equal to the average annual debt service requirement for the next three years for
existing debt.

It is important to note that MFSG did not include a component for debt service coverage. If this
item had been included in the total revenue requirement, then the wholesale rate would have
increased above the proposed amount.

Computation of the Revenue Requirements is explained in further detail in Sections D, E, F, and G
of this report.

2. Method for Wholesale Cost Allocation Factors

There are two main cost allocation factors that must be determined to calculate the City’s of
Lancaster’s Wholesale Water Rates; the Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor and the
Wholesale Transmission Allocation Factor.

The Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor is used to allocate the cost of water production
to the wholesale customer. This factor is based on the ratio of water produced for the wholesale
customer to the total water produced by the utility for all purposes; retail, wholesale, internal use.
The water produced for the wholesale customers includes an appropriate portion of plant losses, and
of transmission losses based on total system inch miles.

Municipal & Financial Services Group 5 City of Lancaster KY



The Transmission Factor allocates the purchaser’s use of the seller’s transmission system. This
factor is based on the ratio of the length of jointly used transmission mains to the total length of
transmission piping multiplied by the ratio of purchaser sales to total sales.

Computation of the Wholesale Cost Allocation Factors is explained in further detail in Section I of
this report.

Municipal & Financial Services Group 6 City of Lancaster KY



D. OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

The day-to-day operating and maintenance expenses are broken down into fifty-three accounts for
the City’s water system.

The audited financial results for FY 2006-2007 and 2007-2008 and the approved budget for FY
2008-2009 were used as the basis for estimating operating and maintenance expenses for the test
year of FY 2009-2010. For the years after 2010 through 2018, water and sewer O&M expenses
were inflated by 2.5% per year.

The estimated cash basis Fiscal Year 2009-2010 O&M expenses for the water system are
$1,011,335. The largest expense items are:

Payroll and Benefits $ 278,810 27.6%
Contract Labor and Services $ 130,500 12.9%
Power $ 187,250 18.5%
Chemicals $ 72,500 7.2%
Materials and Supplies $ 180,775 17.9%
Other Expenses $ 161,500 15.9%
Total $1,011,335 100.0%

These operating and maintenance expenses do not include the Kentucky River Withdrawal Charges
which are shown as a separate line item charge.

Each account number was assigned a percentage allocation between Pumping and Treatment,
Transmission and Distribution, and Customer Expenses. Each account number was also assigned an
individual inflation factor in order to project increases over time.

Operating and maintenance expenses for the water system are presented in Schedule 1 in the
Appendix to the report.

Schedule 1 also shows the requirements for an Operating and Maintenance Reserve equal to 90 days
O&M expenses, if the City chooses to establish such a reserve in the future. Schedule 1 also shows
a Capital Construction Reserve composed of existing and projected cash balances above the amount
needed to fund an Operating and Maintenance Reserve. These cash balances earn interest income
that is used to offset the revenue requirement. Interest income is explained in further detail in
Section G of this report.
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E. CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

The capital costs related to providing water service are generally derived by analyzing the capital
costs of projects detailed in the City’s capital improvement plans and then identifying which of those
projects will be funded via the issuance of debt (typically bonds or similar financial instruments),
those funded via grants or contributions in aid of construction, and those which will be funded from
cash on hand or cash derived from operations.

The City of Lancaster has identified only one capital project, Phase II Water Improvements, in the
amount of $2,537,500 which will be funded through a USDA grant for $1,015,000 or 40% of the
total and through the Water and Sewer Revenue Bond Issue Series 2009 for $1,522,000 or 60% of
the total.

There are no cash funded capital improvements identified in this rate study.

Future capital improvement projects may be entered into Schedule 3 of the Appendix (which
automatically creates Schedules 3A and 3B).

Municipal & Financial Services Group 8 City of Lancaster KY



F. ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENT

The City of Lancaster has five series of outstanding water system debt with annual debt service in

the amount of $159,363 for the test year of fiscal year 2009-2010.

Series of 1976 Interest $7,800
Principal 19,000
Series of 1988 Interest 46,500
Principal 31,000
Series of 2000 Interest 23,997
Principal 8,500
Series of 2005 A Interest 10,706
Principal 2,800
Series of 2005 B Interest 7,060
Principal 2,000
Total Existing Water Debt Service $159,363
Project Series 2009 Debt Service Interest and Principal $75,173
Total Existing and Projected Annual $234,536

Debt Service

The debt is allocated between wholesale and retail customers according to the proportionate share of

billable consumption.

The schedule of existing debt service is presented in Schedule 2 of the Appendix.

The schedule of projected debt service is presented in Schedule 4 of the Appendix.

The breakout between wholesale and retail billable consumption is presented in Schedule 6 of the

Appendix.

Municipal & Financial Services Group
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G. INTEREST INCOME AND MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

1. Computation of Interest Income

The amount of interest income estimated to be earned in the test year of FY 2009-2010 is computed
as the product of the amount of investable funds times the anticipated interest rate:

Total Investment $ 1,160,109
Interest Rate 1.75%
Interest Earned $ 20,302

2. Computation of Total Miscellaneous Revenue

The amount of Miscellaneous Revenue to be earned in the test year of FY 2009-2010 is computed as
the sum of Interest Income, Turn Off/On Charges, Water Deposits, and other miscellaneous revenue
items:

Interest Income $ 20,302
Turn Off/On Charges $ 20,000
Water Deposits $ 1,000
Other $ 25,000
Total Miscellaneous Revenue $ 66,302

Total Miscellaneous Revenue is deducted from Debt Service when computing wholesale water rates.
The schedule of total miscellaneous revenue is presented in Schedule 5 of the Appendix.

The computation of the wholesale portion of the net annual debt service is presented in Schedule 8B
of the Appendix.
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H. WATER USAGE

Water usage is computed as the sum of sum of consumption by retail customers, wholesale

customers, bulk customers, and other water users plus plant use and lost water.

The water usage for FY 2009-2010 is estimated at 493,603,015 gallons:

Retail Customers 87,861,337 17.8%
Wholesale Customers 294,681,000 59.7%
Bulk Customers 21,126,209 4.3%
Other Water Users 14,808,090 3.0%
Plant Use, Backwashing, Flushing 24,680,151 5.0%
Lost Water 50,347,508 10.2%
Total Water Produced 493,603,015 100.0%
The schedule of water usage is presented in Schedule 6 of the Appendix.
Municipal & Financial Services Group 11 City of Lancaster KY



I. METHOD FOR COMPUTING WHOLESALE COST ALLOCATION FACTORS

1. Computation of Water Production Allocation Factor

There are two main cost allocation factors that must be determined to calculate the City’s of
Lancaster’s Wholesale Water Rates; the Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor and the
Wholesale Transmission Allocation Factor. To begin you must first calculate the City’s total water
system production multiplier. The table below summarizes the system characteristics that
determine this multiplier.

Table 1: Total City Water Production Multiplier

% of Total Water
Produced
Plant Use Percentage 5%
Line Loss Percentage 9.4%
Plant Use and Line Loss 14.4%
Water Production Multiplier 1.169

The table above shows the City’s Water Production Multiplier is 1.169. This multiplier tells us that
for every one gallon of water sold by the City of Lancaster in any capacity, 1.169 gallons are
produced. The 0.169 gallons produced but not sold accounts for water loss in the treatment plant
and transmission/distribution lines, as well as water required for normal operations of the system, i.e.
filter backwashing, line flushing, etc. It also accounts for water loss due to leaks, and theft.

The calculation of the Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor take into account both the
Lancaster Water Production Multiplier calculated above as well as the system characteristics specific
to the wholesale customers.

Table 2: Wholesale Water Production Multiplier

Wholesale Inch-Mile Ratio* 50.7%
Wholesale Share of Line Loss 0.048
Joint Share of Plant Use and Line Loss 0.098
Wholesale Production Multiplier 1.108
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The Wholesale Inch-Mile ratio is calculated based upon the known length and estimated diameter of
the transmission and distribution mains used to the serve the wholesale customers as a percentage of
the City’s entire water transmission and distribution system. The City’s water system has 18 miles
of transmission mains and 35 miles of distribution mains. The average size of the transmission
mains is assumed to be twelve inches while the average size of the distribution mains is assumed to
be six inches.

The Wholesale Production Multiplier of 1.108 shown above tells us that for every 1 gallon of water
sold from the City of Lancaster to a wholesale customer, 1.108 gallons of water must be produced.
This accounts for the wholesale customer’s portion of plant and line water system losses.

Now that the production factors have been determined for both the City water system as a whole and
the Wholesale customers as a portion of that system, we must determine how to allocate the cost of
operating the water system. As stated in the beginning of this chapter two factors are necessary to
complete the cost allocation, Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor and the Wholesale
Transmission Allocation Factor

2. Computation of Cost Allocation Factor

The Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor is used to allocate the cost of water production
to the wholesale customer. This factor is based on the ratio of water produced for the wholesale
customer to the total water produced by the utility for all purposes; retail, wholesale, internal use.
The water produced for the wholesale customers includes an appropriate portion of plant losses, and
of transmission losses based on total system inch miles. The Transmission Factor allocates the
purchaser’s use of the seller’s transmission system. This factor is based on the ratio of the length of
jointly used transmission mains to the total length of transmission piping multiplied by the ratio of
purchaser sales to total sales. The table below summarizes the calculated allocation factors used in
this study.

Table 3: Wholesale Cost Allocation Factors

Wholesale Water Production Allocation 0.67444
Factor
Wholesale Water Transmission Allocation

Factor 0.36055

The calculated Wholesale Water Production Allocation Factor shows that the City spends 67% of
the total annual water treatment, pumping and storage expenses in order to service the wholesale
customers. Therefore the wholesale water rate must be calculated to recover 67% of the total annual
water treatment pumping, and storage expenses. The Wholesale Water Production Factor was
calculated by taking the ratio of billed wholesale water gallons to total billable gallons for the City
of Lancaster and multiplying that by the ratio of Wholesale Water Production Multiplier by the
Lancaster Water Production Multiplier.

Municipal & Financial Services Group 13 City of Lancaster K'Y



The Wholesale Water Transmission Allocation Factors shows that the City spends 36% of the total
annual water transmission and distribution expenses in order to service the wholesale customers.
There the wholesale water rate must be calculated to recover 36% of the total annual water
transmission and distribution expenses. The Wholesale Water Transmission Factor was calculated
by taking the ratio of billed wholesale water gallons to total billable gallons for the City of Lancaster
and multiplying that by the Wholesale Inch-Mile Ratio shown in Table 2 above.

The cost allocation factors are computed and presented in Schedule 7 of the Appendix to the report.
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J. RATE COMPUTATION

1. Wholesale Unit Rate Computation

The next and final step was to determine what wholesale water rate increases are required to ensure
that the water fund is self-supporting. The proposed increases to water rates in FY 2009-2010 and
FY 2010-2011 will provide adequate funding for the water system.

The wholesale unit rate computation is relatively straightforward:

A. Compute the Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses attributable to wholesale customers
by multiplying the subtotals of Operating and Maintenance Expenses allocated between
Pumping and Treatment, Transmission and Distribution, and Customer Expenses (described
in Section D of this report and computed in Schedule 1 of the Appendix) by the Wholesale
Cost Allocation Factors (described in Section I Table 3 of this report and computed in
Schedule 7 of the Appendix).

Pumping and Treatment Expenses X Wholesale Production Allocation Factor
Transmission and Distribution Expenses X Wholesale Transmission Allocation Factor

The Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses attributable to wholesale customers is the
sum of those two computations. (Note that the wholesale cost allocation factor for Customer
Expenses is zero, resulting in no expenses related to Customers allocated to wholesale
customers.)

B. Compute the Operating and Maintenance Expenses per thousand gallons for wholesale
customers by dividing the Total Operating and Maintenance Expenses attributable to
wholesale customers from Step A by the projected wholesale water usage (in thousand
gallons).

C. Compute the Net Annual Debt Service per thousand gallons by dividing the net annual debt
service by the total annual billable flow for all customers. The Net Annual Debt Service is
computed by adding the existing annual debt service to the projected annual debt service and
subtracting the annual miscellaneous revenue.

D. Compute the Wholesale Unit Rate by adding the Operating and Maintenance Expenses per
thousand gallons to the Net Annual Debt Service per thousand gallons.

The water rate computation is presented in Schedules 8 in the Appendix to the report.
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2. Computation of effect on Garrard County Water Association

Garrard County Water Association is the largest wholesale customer of the City of Lancaster. The
following presents a calculation for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 under the current and
projected wholesale unit rates.

Purchase 254,484,600 Gallons Rate Annual Amount
Current 2008-2009 $1.88 $478,431.05
Projected 2009-2010 $1.99 $506,424.35
Projected 2010-2011 $2.10 $534,417.66

The proposed rate change results in an increase of $27,993.31 to the Garrard County Water
Association based upon an estimated purchase of 254,484.6 thousand gallons.

3. Alternative Rate Methodology

MFSG computed an alternative methodology using the utility basis methodology for illustration
purposes. At this point, the computation of the return on equity is based upon a very rough estimate
of the equity stake by the City of Lancaster within its water system. While this methodology
represents a reasonable alternative for computing a wholesale water rate with a return component,
additional work would be needed to establish a reasonable basis for amount of equity and the annual
depreciation. A wholesale rate based upon the utility basis methodology would be markedly higher
than the current cash basis rate.

The alternative methodology is presented in Schedule 9 in the Appendix to the report.
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K. COMPARISONS

It may be useful for the City of Lancaster and to compare the proposed wholesale rate relative to
other wholesale providers within the region. The Bluegrass Area Development District Rate Book -
Water and Sewer Rates was published in January 2008 and contains purchase price data for water
utilities purchasing water for resale within the region. The report is available on the internet at:

http://www.bgadd.org/pdf/water sewer/WaterSewerTaxRates2007.pdf

The data contained in Table 6 of that report shows the effective price per thousand gallons. (When
available, the information used to calculate the data was provided by the utility purchasing water for
resale. If information from the purchasing utility was not available, information from the supplying
utility was used in these calculations. For most water districts and water associations, data from the
utility’s annual report to the Kentucky Public Service Commission was used.) For purposes of this
comparison, MFSG selected nearby utilities with comparable usage amounts.

Supplier Utility Utility Purchasing for Resale Rate / 1000 gallons
Kentucky-American City of Midway $2.35
City of Harrodsburg North Mercer WD $1.40
City of Lawrenceburg South Anderson WD $2.15
City of Frankfort South Anderson WD $1.78
City of Versailles South Woodford WD $2.05

The average rate per thousand gallons for all utilities included in Table 6 of that report (including the
utilities listed above) was $1.93. Although this comparison is based upon 2007 rates, it appears that
the proposed rate for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 is consistent with other wholesale rates within the
region.

Municipal & Financial Services Group 17 City of Lancaster K'Y


http:llwww.bgadd.orglpdflwater

L. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The findings and recommendations that were developed during the course of this rate study are
presented below.

1. Findings

®

Based on projected water sales, the current wholesale water rates will not produce
adequate revenues to cover the water system revenue requirements for Fiscal Year
2010 or the years following.

The previous rate study methodology did not include recovery of debt service in the
wholesale water rates despite the benefit received by wholesale customers from debt-
financed assets. This resulted in recovery of those debt service costs retail customers
only.

Using a future test year based upon audited financial results through June 30, 2008
adjusted for known and measurable changes, a proposed increase in wholesale water
rates from $1.88 to $2.10 will be required to fund a fair, just, and reasonable portion of
operating expenses of the water system.

Due to the size of the rate increase, it may be prudent to phase in the rate increase over
two years.

The City of Lancaster has planned capital investments in water treatment and
distribution system improvements which may require additional funding over time.

2. Recommendations

The debt service costs for the water system should be distributed equitably between the
retail and wholesale customers.

The City of Lancaster should increase wholesale water rates from $1.88 to $1.99
effective July 1, 2009.

The City of Lancaster should increase wholesale water rates from $2.00 to $2.10
effective July 1, 2010.

The City of Lancaster should consider an update to this rate study as the capital
improvement plans are constructed.

This wholesale water rate study and report were prepared by Robert K. Miller and Lisa M. Zitomer
of the Municipal and Financial Services Group. The Municipal and Financial Services Group
appreciates the cooperation received from and the assistance provided by the City of Lancaster staff
throughout this project.
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Index

1, Kentucky

Account Number

200-6010.20
200-6010.40
200-6010.50
200-6040.20
200-6040.40
200-6040.50
200-6150.10

200-6150.20
200-6150.50

200-6180.20
200-6200.10
200-6200.20
200-6200.40
200-6200.50
200-6210.50
200-6310.10
200-6310.20
200-6310.30
200-6310.40
200-6320.50
200-6340.10
200-6340.20
200-6340.30
200-6340.40
200-6340.50
200-6420.10
200-6420.20
200-6420.40
200-6500.10
200-6500.20
200-6500.40
200-6500.50
200-6560.10
200-6560.20
200-6560.40

Description

Salaries/Wages Plant

Salaries/Wages Distribution

Salaries Admin

Empl Benefits/Pension Plant

Empl Benefits/Pension Distribution
Empl Benefits/Pension Administration
Utilities Raw Water

Utilities Plant

Utilities Citv Hall
Chemicals Plant

Materials/Supplies Raw
Materials/Supplies Plant
Materials/Supplies Distribution
Materials/Supplies Administration
Miscellaneous Administration
Services-Engineer Raw
Services-Engineer Plant
Services-Engineer Storage
Services-Engineer Distribution
Services-Accounting Administration
Services-Raw Water
Services-Treatment Plant
Services-Storage

Contract Services-Distribution
Services-Other Administration
Equipment Rental Raw Water
Equipment Rental Plant
Equipment Rental Distribution
Transportion Exp Raw
Transportion Exp Plant
Transportion Exp Distribution
Transportion Exp Administration
Insurance River/Boost P
Insurance Plant

Insurance Vehicle/Equipment

SCHEDULE 1 - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

FY09 FY10

Pumpé&Treat Trans&Distr Customer Budget Forecast
100% 0 0% 116,537 120,033
0% 0% 24,280 40,000
S33% 3 34% 35,900 36,977
- 100% ‘ 0% 42,350 45,000
0% 0% 15,400 25,000
S33% 34% 50 800
S 100% 0% 145,000 145,000
o 100% 0% 42,250 42,250

L33y 34% - -
o 100% 0% 62,300 72,500
o 100% 0% 2,500 2,575
- 100% 0% 19,400 70,000
0% 0% 45,250 100,000
0% 100% 7,100 8,200
0% 100% 2,000 1,000
100% 0% 500 500
o 100% 0% 500 500
0% 0% 500 500
Co0% 0% 500 500
0% 100% 12,000 10,000
S 100% 0% 3,500 3,500
S 100% 0% 15,000 15,000
0% 0% 48,834 40,000
0% 0% 3,000 5,000
0% 100% 35,000 35,000
o 100% 0% 500 500
- 100% 0% 500 500
0% 0% 1,000 1,000
100% 0% 5,000 2,000
~ 100% 0% 2,650 5,500
0% 0% 3,200 7,500
0% - 100% 700 700
S100% 0% 1,750 1,750
100% 0% 5,850 6,000
he83% 34% 1,300 1,500

1) O&M Expenses




Account Number

200-6565.30
200-6570.00
200-6580.00
200-6600.20
200-6600.50
200-6720.10
200-6720.20
200-6720.40
200-6720.50
200-6740.50
200-6750.50
200-6760.20
200-6770.20
200-6770.50
200-6800.50
200-6820.10
200-6850.10
200-6850.20
200-6850.30
200-6850.40
200.6870.20
200-6870.40
200-6875.40
200-6900.50
200-6920.50
200-6950.20
200-6980.50

SCHEDULE 1 - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Description Pumpé& Treat Trans&Distr Customer
Insurance Wat Towers 0% 100% 0%
Liability Insurance ) 50% 50%
Workmans Compensation 34%
Advertising Plant 0%
Advertising Administration 100%
Telephone Raw Water 0%
Telephone Plant 0%
Telephone Distribution 0%
Telephone Administration 100%
City Hall Administration 100%
Water Deposit Ref Administration 100%
Lab Analysis Plant 0%
Postage Plant 0%
Postage Admin 100%
Dues/Subscriptions Admin 100%
Kentucky River Fee Raw
RD Bond Payment Raw Water
RD Bond Payment Plant
RD Bond Payment Storage
BD Bond Payment Distribution
KIA Bond Payment Plant
KIA Bond Payment Distribution
RD Bond Payment (New) S
Sales & Usage Tax Admin G 0% i 0% 100%
School Tax Administration 0% 0% 100%
Contingency Plant § .
Depreciation Administration 0% 0% 100%

TOTAL OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

FY09 FY10

Budget Forecast
2,500 2,500
6,700 8,000
9,700 11,000
500 500
500 500
850 1,000
2,100 2,100
1,150 1,500
660 1,150

500 -
24,300 24,300
12,000 20,000
300 © 500
1,400 2,000
1,500 3,000
5,000 5,000
14,600 15,500
66,000 66,000
$ 852,361 $ 1,011,335

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSE BREAKDOWN

Pumping and Treatment Sub-Total
Transmission and Distribution Sub-Total
Customer Service and Administration Sub-Total

1) O&M Expenses

%]

497,331
164,458
$ 190,573

©w

$ 573,800
$ 244,091
$ 193,444



SCHEDULE 1 - OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

Account Number

previous study 2007
16.5%
4.6%
1.8%
22.3%
44.8%
10.0%

$1,012,064

FY09 FY10

Description Pump& Treat Trans&Distr Customer Budget Forecast
Debt Sub-Total $ - 3 -
TOTAL $ 852,361 § 1,011,335
Purchased Power for Treatment POWER $ 140,623 $ 166,851
Chemicals CHEM $ 38927 $§ 46,187
Kentucky River Withdrawal Fee RIVER § 15394 § 18,265
Pumping and Treatment P&T $ 190,380 $ 225,888
Transmission and Distribution T&D $§ 381,869 § 453,091
Customers CUSTOMER $ 85,168 § 101,053
Debt DEBT 5 - $ -
TOTAL $ 852,361 §$ 1,011,335

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE RESERVE

Target Balance (90 days operating) 142,060 168,556
Reserve Withdrawal - L

Current Balance* 145,894 149,940
WATER O&M RESERVE CONTRIBUTION - 18,616

* Assumption for Year | Funding

CAPITAL CONSTRCUTION RESERVE

Current Balance 827,727 1,010,169
Reserve Withdrawal - -
CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION RESERVE 827,727 1,010,169

1) O&M Expenses



FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY1i5 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
123,634 127,343 131,163 135,098 139,151 143,326 147,626 152,054 156,616 161,314
41,200 42,436 43,709 45,020 46,371 47,762 49,195 50,671 52,191 53,757
38,086 39,229 40,406 41,618 42,866 44,152 45,477 46,841 48,247 49,694
46,350 47,741 49,173 50,648 52,167 53,732 55,344 57,005 58,715 60,476
25,750 26,523 27,318 28,138 28,982 29,851 30,747 31,669 32,619 33,598
824 849 874 900 927 955 984 1,013 1,044 1,075
149,350 153,831 158,445 163,199 168,095 173,138 178,332 183,682 189,192 194,868
43,518 44,823 46,168 47,553 48,979 50,449 51,962 53,521 55,127 56,780
74,675 76,915 79,223 81,599 84,047 86,569 89,166 91,841 94,596 97,434
2,652 2,732 2,814 2,898 2,985 3,075 3,167 3,262 3,360 3,461
72,100 74,263 76,491 78,786 81,149 83,584 86,091 88,674 91,334 94,074
103,000 106,090 109,273 112,551 115,927 119,405 122,987 126,677 130,477 134,392
8,446 8,699 8,960 9,229 9,506 9,791 10,085 10,388 10,699 11,020
1,030 1,061 1,093 1,126 1,159 1,194 1,230 1,267 1,305 1,344
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
10,300 10,609 10,927 11,255 11,593 11,941 12,299 12,668 13,048 13,439
3,605 3,713 3,825 3,939 4,057 4,179 4,305 4,434 4,567 4,704
15,450 15,914 16,391 16,883 17,389 17,911 18,448 19,002 19,572 20,159
41,200 42,436 43,709 45,020 46,371 47,762 49,195 50,671 52,191 53,757
5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 5,796 5,970 6,149 6,334 6,524 6,720
36,050 37,132 38,245 39,393 40,575 41,792 43,046 44,337 45,667 47,037
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
1,030 1,061 1,093 1,126 1,159 1,194 1,230 1,267 1,305 1,344
2,060 2,122 2,185 2,251 2,319 2,388 2,460 2,534 2,610 2,688
5,665 5,835 6,010 6,190 6,376 6,567 6,764 6,967 7,176 7,392
7,725 7,957 8,195 8,441 8,695 8,955 9,224 9,501 9,786 10,079
721 743 765 788 811 836 861 887 913 941
1,803 1,857 1,912 1,970 2,029 2,090 2,152 2,217 2,283 2,352
6,180 6,365 6,556 6,753 6,956 7,164 7,379 7,601 7,829 8,063
1,545 1,591 1,639 1,688 1,739 1,791 1,845 1,900 1,957 2,016

1) O&M Expenses



FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FYl16 FY1i7 FY18 FY19 FY20
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
2,575 2,652 2,732 2,814 2,898 2,985 3,075 3,167 3,262 3,360
8,240 8,487 8,742 9,004 9,274 9,552 9,839 10,134 10,438 10,751
11,330 11,670 12,020 12,381 12,752 13,135 13,529 13,934 14,353 14,783
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
1,030 1,061 1,093 1,126 1,159 1,194 1,230 1,267 1,305 1,344
2,163 2,228 2,295 2,364 2,434 2,508 2,583 2,660 2,740 2,822
1,545 1,591 1,639 1,688 1,739 1,791 1,845 1,900 1,957 2,016
1,185 1,220 1,257 1,294 1,333 1,373 1,414 1,457 1,500 1,546
25,029 25,780 26,553 27,350 28,170 29,015 29,886 30,783 31,706 32,657
20,600 21,218 21,855 22,510 23,185 23,881 24,597 25,335 26,095 26,878
515 530 546 563 580 597 615 633 652 672
2,060 2,122 2,185 2,251 2,319 2,388 2,460 2,534 2,610 2,688
3,090 3,183 3,278 3,377 3,478 3,582 3,690 3,800 3914 4,032
5,150 5,305 5,464 5,628 5,796 5,970 6,149 6,334 6,524 6,720
15,965 16,444 16,937 17,445 17,969 18,508 19,063 19,635 20,224 20,831
66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000 66,000
$ 1,039,695 $ 1,068,906 $ 1,098,993 $ 1,129,983 § 1,161,902 $ 1,194,780 $ 1,228,643 § 1,263,522 § 1,299,448 § 1,336,451
$ 591,014 $ 608,744 $ 627,006 $ 645816 $ 665,191 $ 685147 $ 705701 $ 726,872 $ 748,678 § 771,139
$ 251,414 $ 258,957 $ 266,725 $ 274,727 $ 282969 $ 291,458 $ 300,202 $ 309,208 $§ 318484 $§ 328,038
$ 197,268 $ 201,206 $ 205262 $ 209,440 $ 213,743 $ 218,175 $ 222,740 § 227,442 $§ 232,286 $ 237,274
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FYil FY12 FY13 FYl4 FY15 FY16 FYi7 FY18 FY19 FY20

Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
3 - $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 1,039,695 $ 1,068,906 $ 1,098,993 $ 1,129,983 $ 1,161,902 $ 1,194,780 $ 1,228,643 § 1,263,522 § 1,299,448 § 1,336,451
$ 171,530 $ 176,349 $ 181,313 $ 186425 $§ 191,691 $ 197,116 § 202,702 $ 208,457 § 214,384 § 220,489
$ 47482 $ 48,816 § 50,190 § 51,605 $ 533,063 § 34,564 $ 56,111 § 57,704 $ 59,345 § 61,034
$ 18,777 § 19,305 § 19,848 $ 20,408 § 20,984 §$ 21,578 § 22,189 §$ 22,819 § 23,468 § 24,136
$ 232223 $ 238,747 $ 245467 $ 252,389 $§ 259,518 $§ 266,862 $ 274,425 § 282216 § 290,240 § 298,505
$ 465,797 $ 478,884 $ 492363 $ 506,247 $ 520,548 $ 535277 $ 550,448 $ 566,075 $ 582,170 $§ 598,748
$ 103,887 $ 106,806 $ 109,812 $ 112,909 $ 116,098 $ 119,383 $ 122,767 $§ 126,252 § 129,842 § 133,539
$ - $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
$ 1,039,695 $ 1,068,906 $ 1,098,993 § 1,129,983 $ 1,161,902 $ 1,194,780 § 1,228,643 § 1,263,522 § 1,299,448 § 1,336,451

173,283 178,151 183,166 188,330 193,650 199,130 204,774 210,587 216,575 222,742
154,109 158,402 162,824 167,379 172,070 176,902 181,879 187,005 192,286 197,724
19,174 19,749 20,342 20,952 21,581 22,228 22,895 23,582 24,289 25,018

1,057,771

1,091,766

1,110,709

1,115,060

1,103,627

1,073,913

1,027,256

969,212

892,807

798,914

1,057,771

1,091,766

1,110,709

1,115,060

1,103,627

1,073,913

1,027,256

969,212

892,807

798,914

1) O&M Expenses



City of Lz  ~ster, Kentucky

2) Existing Debt Service

-Index - : : e
SCHEDULE 2 - EXISTING DEBT SERVICE
WATER Base Year
FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12

Series of 1976 Interest 8,700 7,800 6,850 5,850
Series of 1976 Principal 18,000 19,000 20,000 21,000
Series of 1988 Interest 47,950 46,500 44,950 43,350
Series of 1988 Principal 29,000 31,000 32,000 34,000
Series of 2000 Interest 24,369 23,997 23,625 23,231
Series of 2000 Principal 8,500 8,500 9,000 9,500
Series of 2005 A Interest 10,824 10,706 10,583 10,452
Series of 2005 A Principal 2,700 2,800 3,000 3,100
Series of 2005 B Interest 7,145 7,060 6,975 6,885
Series 0f 2005 B Principal 2,000 2,000 2,100 2,200
TOTAL WATER DEBT SERVICE 159,188 159,363 159,083 159,568
Total Interest 98,988 96,063 92,983 89,768
Total Principal 60,200 63,300 66,100 69,800



FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY 19 FY 20 FY 21-45 |Total Existing Debt

4,800 3,700 2,550 1,300 41,550
22,000 23,000 25,000 26,000 174,000
41,650 39,900 38,050 36,100 34,050 31,900 29,650 27,300 117,900 579,250
35,000 37,000 39,000 41,000 43,000 45,000 47,000 50,000 496,000 959,000
22,816 22,378 21,941 21,459 20,978 20,453 19,928 19,359 223,716 438,250
10,000 10,000 11,000 11,000 12,000 12,000 13,000 13,000 429,500 557,000
10,316 10,176 10,028 9,874 9,713 9,542 9,367 9,183 137,271 258,035
3,200 3,400 3,500 3,700 3,900 4,000 4,200 4,400 205,500 247,400
6,792 6,694 6,592 6,486 6,375 6,261 6,142 6,014 88,864 168,285
2,300 2,400 2,500 2,600 2,700 2,800 3,000 3,100 138,400 168,100
158,874 158,648 160,161 159,519 132,716 131,956 132,287 132,356 1,837,151 3,640,870
86,374 82,848 79,161 75,219 71,116 68,156 65,087 61,856 567,751 1,535,370
72,500 75,800 81,000 84,300 61,600 63,800 67,200 70,500 1,269,400 2,105,500

2) Existing Debt Service
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Index

SCHEDULE 3 - CAPiTAL IMTROVEMENT PROJECTS

Funding Source

CIpP

Deseription Cash: Bonds: FY09 FY10 FY1l
Water Capital Improvement Projects
Phase II Water Improvements (60% Loan and 40% Grant Funded) ™D 60% 2,537,000
(not allocated to wholesale customers in this rate study)
TOTAL WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 2,537,000
Water
Pumping and Treatment PT -
Transmission and Distribution D 2,537,000
Other 0 -
TOTAL 2,537,000

3) CIP



FY12 FY13 FYi4 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 Total

2,537,000

- - - - - - - - - 2,537,000

- - - - - - - - - 2,537,000

- - - - - - - - - 2,537,000

3) CIP



Cityof L-  ster, Kentucky
‘ndex - - - - —— . - N E S -
SCHEDULE 3A - CASH FUNDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FYI13

Water Cash Capital Improvement Projects

Phase II Water Improvements (60% Loan and 40% Grant Funded) - - - -
(not allocated to wholesale customers in this rate study) - - - -
0 - - - -

OO DO OO OO OO
'
1
1
'

TOTAL CASH WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS - - - -

3A) CIP Cash



FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 Total

3A) CIP Cash



Cityof L-  ster, Kentucky
Index
SCHEDULE 3B - BOND FUNDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

FYO09 FY10 FY11 FY12
Water Bond Capital Improvement Projects
Phase II Water Improvements (60% Loan and 40% Grant Funded) 1,522,200 - -
(not allocated to wholesale customers in this rate study) - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
0 - - -
TOTAL BOND WATER CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 1,522,200 - -

3B) CIP Bond



FYI3 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 Total

- - - - - - - - 1,522,200

- - - - - - - -| 1,522,200

3B) CIP Bond
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SCHEDULE 4 - PROJECTED USER DEBT SERVICE

Water System Projected Debt

Estimated Bond Issues (CIP)
Projected Borrowed Amount

Debt Service

Interest Rate

Period (years)

Debt Service by Fiscal Year
Admin Fees (% of debt service)
Total Debt Service by Fiscal Year

Projected Annual Debt Payment Schedule

Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY10
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY11
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY12
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY13
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY14
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY15
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FYl6
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY17
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY18
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY19
Projected Debt Serv. - FY FY20

Total Annual Projected Debt Service

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13
$ 1,522,200 - - 8 -8 -
1,522,200 - - - -
275%  275% C275%  275% 275%
300030 . 0300 300 30
75,173 - - - .
$ 75173 - - 8 - $ -
FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14
75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173
$ 75173 § 75,173 75173 $ 75173 § 75173

4) Projected User Debt Service



FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19

$ - S - 3 - 8 - 8 -8 -
2.75% 2.75% - 275% 0 2.75% 275% - 2.75%
300 30 .30 30 3030
$ - 8 - § - 8 - 8 - 5 -
FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173

$ 75,173 $ 75,173  § 75,173 $ 75173 $§ 75,173 $§ 75,173

4) Projected User Debt Service
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SCHEDULE 5 - INTEREST INCOME MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

Water Fund Investments
FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13
Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Total Investment $ 973,620 $ 1,160,109 $ 1,211,880 $ 1,250,168 $ 1,273,533
Interest Rate 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
Interest Earned $ 17,038 § 20,302 3 21,208 § 21,878 § 22,287
Miscellaneous Revenue
FYO09 FY10 FY1i FY12 FY13
Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
Account Number Description
200-4710.00 Miscellaneous 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
200-4740.20 Water Deposits 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
200-4740.30 Interest 17,038 20,302 21,208 21,878 22,287
200-4740.40 Turn Off/On Charges 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $ 63,038 § 66302 $ 67,208 §$ 67,878 $ 68,287

5) Interest Income and Misc Rev



FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

$ 1,282,438 $ 1,275,697 $ 1,250,815 $ 1,209,135 § 1,156,217 § 1,085,092 $§ 996,638
1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75% 1.75%
$ 22443 § 22325 $ 21,889 $ 21,160 $ 20,234 § 18,989 $ 17,441

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
22,443 22,325 21,889 21,160 20,234 18,989 17,441
20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

$ 068443 $ 68,325 $ 67,889 $§ 67,60 $ 66,234 $§ 64,989 § 63,441

5) Interest Income and Misc Rev
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SCHEDULE 6 - WATER USAGE

Water Use Breakdown

% of Total
Retaii Customers

% of Total
Wholesale Customers

% of Total
Bulk Customers

% of Total
Other Water Users

% of Total
Plant Use, Backwashing, Flushing

% of Total
Lost Water

Total Water Produced

Previous Study 06/07  Actual Data FY07 FY09 FY10 FY11
17 8% L L] Q0 e T 19 0% 19.0% 19.0%
81 337 509 96,223,600 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573
LS9% e BT30S ST 30 T 30, - 57.3%
272, 800,523 290, 169 310 282,814 ,245 282,814, 245 282,814,245
AR 43% 43% 43% L 43%
19,648,949 21,776,920 21,126,209 21 ,126,209 21,126,209
C30% T 50% 50% 50% 0 5.0%
13, 708 569 25, 322 000 24,680,151 24 680,151 24,680,151
50% 5.0% 50% 0 50% 0 50%
22,847,615 25,322,000 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151
. 94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . 94%
42, 953 516 47, 605 360 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683
456,952,300 506,440,000 493.603.015 493,603,015 493,603,015
check % 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
check water produced 506,419,190 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012

6) Water Usage



Consumption (gallons)

6) Water Usage

FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
C190% o 190% o 190% 0 190% 0 190% o 190% 0 19.0% 190% o 190%
93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573 93,784,573
573% 0 573% . 573% 0 513% 573% 0 573% . 573% 5713% . 513%
282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245
43% 0 43% 43% 43% 43% 0 43% 0 43% 43% o 43%
21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209 21,126,209
0% 0% S0% s s0% e o 50% 0% 50% 5% e 5%
24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151
50% 0 50% . 50% 50% 0 50%  50% S50% . 50% - 50%
24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151 24,680,151
C94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . 94% . . 94% .
46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683 46,398,683
493,603,015 493,603,015 493,603,015 493.603.015 493.603.015 493,603,015 493,603,015 493.603.015 493,603,015
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012 493,484,012
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SCHEDULE 7 - COST ALLOCATIONS

Inch-Mile Cost Allocations - Wholesale Customers FY09 FYI0 FY11 FY12
Lancaster

Plant Use Percentage e 50% e 5 0% 50%e o 5.0%
Line Loss Percentage 94% 9.4% - 94% 94%
Plant Use and Line Loss 14.4% 14.4% 14.4% 14.4%
Lancaster Water Production Multiplier 1.169 1.169 1.169 1.169
Wholesale

Wholesale Inch-Mile Ratio 50.7% 50.7% 50.7% 50.7%
Wholesale Share of Line Loss 0.048 0.048 0.048 0.048
Joint Share of Plant Use and Line Loss 0.098 0.098 0.098 0.098
Wholesale Production Multiplier 1.108 0.902 0.902 0.902
Wholesale Production Allocation Factor 0.67444 0.54895 0.54895 0.54895
Wholesale Transmission Allocation Factor 0.36055 0.36055 0.36055 0.36055

Assumes Average Distribution Main Size of Six Inches and Average Transmission Main Size of Twelve Inches

7) Cost Allocations




FY13

L 5.0%.

9.4%
14.4%

1.169

50.7%
0.048

0.098

Allocation Factors

FY14

5.0%

9.4%"

14.4%

FY15

- 5.0% -

" 9.4%

14.4%

50.7%

0.048

0.098

FY16

9.4%
14.4%

1.169

50.7%
0.048

0.098

EY17

CE0%

94%

14.4%

7) Cost Allocations

FY18

FY19

e 5.0%

9.4%

14.4%

50.7%

0.048

0.098

0.902

FY20

9.4%
14.4%

1.169

50.7%
0.048
0.098

0.902

50%
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SCHEDULE 8 - WHOLESALE WATER RATE COMPUTATION - CASH BASIS METHODOLOGY

FY10 Fyii FY12 FY13 FY14
Current Rate
Allocation
Operating Expenses Factors
Pumping and Treatment 0.67444 $386,994 $398.604 $410,562 $422.879 $435,565
Transmission and Distribution 0.36055 $88,007 $90,647 $93.366 $96,167 $99,052
Customer 0.00000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Total Wholesale Operating Expenses $475.000 $489.250 $503.928 $519.046 $534.617
Wholesale Operating Unit Rate (per 1,000 gallons) $1.68 $1.73 $1.78 $1.84 $1.89
Debt Expenses
Total Debt Service (Existing) $159,363 $159,083 $159,568 $158,874 $158,648
Total Debt Service (Projected) $75,173 $75,173 $75,173 $75,173 $75,173
Miscellaneous Income $66,302 $67,208 $67,878 $68,287 $68,443
Total Lancaster Billable Flow 397,725 397,725 397,725 397,725 397,725
Net Debt Service Unit Rate (per 1,000 gallons) $0.42 $0.42 $0.42 50.42 $0.42
Total Wholesale Billable Flow 282,814 $282,814 282,814 282,814 282,814
Total Wholesale Debt Service Expense $118.782 $5118.782 $118.782 $118.782 $118.782
WHOLESALE UNIT RATE
KENTUCKY RIVER FEE UNIT RATE $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088
TOTAL WHOLESALE CONTRACT UNIT RATE $1.968 $2.188 $2.238 $2.288 $2.348 $2.398
Percent Increase in Wholesale Unit Rate 2.4% 2.3% 2.7% 2.2%
Percent Increase in Wholesale Contract Unit Rate 11.2%

8) Whoiesale Rate Calculation



FYiS EY16 Y17 FY18 EY19 FY20
$448,632 $462,091 $475,954 $490,232 $504,939 $520,087
$102,024 $105,084 $108,237 $111,484 $114,829 $118,273

$0 $0 $0 50 $0 $0
$550.656 $567.175 $584.191 $601.716 $619.768 $638.361
$1.95 $2.01 $2.07 $2.13 $2.19 $2.26
$160,161 $159,519 $132,716 $131,956 $132,287 $132,356
$75,173 $75,173 $75,173 $75,173 $75,173 $75,173
$68,325 $67,889 $67,160 $66,234 $64,989 $63,441
397,725 397,725 397,725 397,725 397,725 397,725
$0.42 $0.42 $0.35 $0.35 $0.36 $0.36
282,814 282,814 282,814 282,814 282,814 282,814
$118.782 $118.782 $98.985 $98.985 $101.813 $101.813

$0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088 $0.088
$2.458 $2.518 $2.508 $2.568 $2.638 $2.708
2.6% 2.5% -0.4% 2.5% 2.8% 2.7%

8) Wholesale Rate Calculation



City of Lan..ster, Kentucky

SCHEDULE 9 - WHOLESALE WATER RATE - UTILITY BASIS ALTERNATIVE

CALCULATION OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Annual Gross Depreciation
Accumulated Depreciation

CALCULATION OF RETURN ON EQUITY

Gross Water System Assets

Less Outstanding Principal on Debt

Less Contributed Assets/Grants (Net of Depreciation)
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Allowance for Working Capital (Percentage of O&M)
Net Equity

Rate of Return (match Ind Bond rate)

Return on Equity

CALCULATION OF REVENUE REQUIREMENT

Operating Expenses

Depreciation

Return on Equity

Total Utility Basis Revenue Requirement

Total Wholesale Water Consumption in Gallons
Utility Basis Wholesale Unit Cost per Thousand Gallons

Page 28 of 31

FY06 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13
Starting
__Balance _ 142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528
...3,170,406.- 3,597,990 3,740,518 3,883,046 4,025,574
FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13
6,656,569 6,656,569 6,656,569 6,656,569
3,597,990 3,740,518 3,883,046 4,025,574
25% 118,750 122,313 125,982 129,761
3,177,329 3,038,363 2,899,504 2,760,756
10%
317,733 303,836 289,950 276,076
FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13
475,000 489,250 503,928 519,046
142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528
317,733 303,836 289,950 276,076
935,261 935,615 936,406 937,649
282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245
$3.31 $3.31 $3.31 $3.32



FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18
142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528

4,168,102 4,310,630 4,453,158 4,595,686 4738214

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

6,656,569 6,656,569 6,656,569 6,656,569 6,656,569

4,168,102 4,310,630 4,453,158 4,595,686 4,738,214
133,654 137,664 141,794 146,048 150,429
2,622,121 2,483,602 2,345,204 2,206,930 2,068,784
262,212 248.360 234,520 220,693 206,878

FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18
534,617 550,656 567,175 584,191 601,716
142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528 142,528
262,212 248,360 234,520 220,693 206,878
939,357 941,544 944,224 947,412 951,123
282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245 282,814,245
$3.32 $3.33 $3.34 $3.35 $3.36

Page 29 of 31
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SCHEDULE 10 - CASH FLOW

Revenues

Retail Customer - User Fees
Wholesale Customer - User Fees
Miscellaneous Revenues
Sub-Total Revenues

Expenses

Operating and Maintenace Expenses

Operating and Maintenace Reserve Contribution
Existing Debt Service

Projected Cash Funded Capital

Projected Debt Service

Sub-Total Expenses

Annual Surplus (Deficit)

Available Cash Balance

FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12
581,000 581,000 581,000 581,000

554,000 593,782 608,032 622,710
63,038 66,302 67,208 67,878
1,198,038 1,241,084 1,256,240 1,271,588
852,361 1,011,335 1,039,695 1,068,906
- 18,616 19,174 19,749
159,188 159,363 159,083 159,568
75,173 75,173 75,173

1,011,549 1,189,314 1,217,952 1,248,223

186,489 51,771 38,288 23,365
973,620 1,160,109 1,211,880 1,250,168 1,273,533

10) Cash Flow



FY13 FYi4 FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20
581,000 581,000 581,000 581,000 581,000 - 581,000 581,000 581,000
637,828 653,399 669,438 685,957 683,176 700,701 721,581 740,174
68,287 68,443 68,325 67,889 67,160 66,234 64,989 63,441
1,287,115 1,302,842 1,318,762 1,334,847 1,331,335 1,347,935 1,367,570 1,384,615
1,098,993 1,129,983 1,161,902 1,194,780 1,228,643 1,263,522 1,299,448 1,336,451
20,342 20,952 21,581 22,228 22,895 23,582 24,289 25,018
158,874 158,648 160,161 159,519 132,716 131,956 132,287 132,356
75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173 75,173
1,278,209 1,309,583 1,343,644 1,376,526 1,384,254 1,419,060 1,456,024 1,493,825
8,906 (6,741) (24,882) (41,680) (52,918) (71,125) (88,454) (109,210)
1,282,438 1,275,697 1,250,815 1,209,135 1,156,217 1,085,092 996,638 887,428

10) Cash Flow
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Introduction

WATER AND SEWER RATES, WATER PRODUCTION, AND PUBLICALLY OWNED WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT FLOWS
Utility services rates are important to all of us. Service charges affect the pocketbooks of all consumers. Rates have been steadily rising due in part to
increasingly stringent environmental standards, state and federal enforcement agencies, and capital construction projects to accommodate the population
growth within the region.

Tables 1-5 present data on charges for water and sewer service in the 17-county Biuegrass Area Development District. They are examined in three
service area categories: medium and large size cities (population 2,500 and greater - Tables 1 and 4), smaller cities (under population 2,500 - Tables 2
and 5), and Rural/suburban areas (Table 3 - water only).

Table 6 presents data on water utilities (generally the rural utilities) that purchase potable water from larger water suppliers for resale to their own
customers.

Table 7 presents data on Water Tap-on Fees.

Table 8 presents data on Sewer Tap-on Fees.

Table 9 presents data on water and sewer customers by county of residence.

Table 10 presents data on water production in the Bluegrass ADD for calendar year 2006.

Table 11 presents seven-year water production averages in the Bluegrass ADD.

Table 12 presents data on measured flows at publicly owned wastewater treatment plant flows in the Bluegrass area for calendar year 2006

Water and sewer rates must be sufficient to operate and maintain the utility systems, and provide for needed capital improvements and/or expansions.
Invariably, rates increase to meet these needs.

Often, customers resist rate increases because they lack information about the utility's operating and capital improvements costs. Factors which affect
costs are:

1. Operation and maintenance practices.

2. The relative density of the customers. Example: A water utility with 100 customers per mile of water line might be expected to have lower rates
than one with 15 customers per mile.

3. The infusion of outside funds. Example: A utility that was built utilizing some federal or state grant funds should have the financial advantage over
a like utility that had no grant funds.

4. Topographic/geologic consideration. Example: A utility which must install pipelines in areas where bedrock is near the surface will likely operate at
a dollar disadvantage to a utility which encounters little rock in pipeline installation.

5. The relative ease with which a water supply can be developed. Example: A utility that can draw an adequate supply of water from a nearby
source has the advantage over a ufility which must otherwise develop an expensive water supply.

6. The cost of progress. Example: Due to the effects of inflation upon construction, the less capital investment that a utility has made in recent years,
the better is the likelihood for lower rates. Utilities that serve areas that are experiencing rapid growth are generally those which have to
continually upgrade and/or expand their systems.

7. Subsidies. Example: Some utilities are water-sewer-electric or water-sewer-gas. As is the case with some of the Bluegrass District utilities, the
cost of the water and sewer systems may be subsidized by some other utility. Sometimes this can have a negative effect as is often the case
when a garbage system is incorporated with a water and sewer utility. In such cases, water and sewer revenues can subsidize the garbage
system.




8. Legal diversion of funds. Example: Some cities will use a portion of water and/or sewer funds to supplement the General Fund account. Other
cities draw from the General Fund to supplement water and/or sewer utility operations.

9. Economy of scale. Example: The smaller the utility, the greater the probability that manpower needs are being slighted, that trained and dedicated
people cannot be atiracted, or if employed, cannot be retained or paid a competitive wage. Similarly, with the purchase of supplies and materials,
it is the large utility which normally purchases at the lower unit rate. Itis generally true in the Bluegrass Area Development District that the larger
the utility, the more efficient it can be and the level of service can be higher.

10. Adequacy of facilities. Example: The utility which was designed to meet long-range needs with respect to line sizing or treatment capacity may
well be operating at a rate disadvantage--in the early years--when compared to a utility which was designed only to meet the needs of the near

term.
Water and sewer rates are difficult to compare from community to community for the following reasons:
Some communities use 1,000 gallons as the unit of measure. Others use 100 cubic feet (approximately equal to 750 gallons).

1. Different communities use different quantities as the amount available for the minimum bill. The most common quantity of water available for the
minimum bill is 2,000 galions per month.

2. Different communities use different rate bracketing systems.

Some communities charge for sewer service as a direct percentage of water bills. This varies from 40 percent to well over 100 percent. In recent
years, many cities implemented flat rate charges for every unit of sewer service purchased above the minimum bill quantity.

Some communities’ rate schedules are based on a billing period other than monthly.
Some communities use a different rate schedule for residents outside the city limits, both for water and sewer services.

This is a snapshot of rate charges among utilities of like size and characteristics. Rates continually change. The reader is cautioned that these
data will become "dated" rather quickly. Within a year, a sufficient number of rate schedules may have changed to the extent that the information

contained herein should be updated.

WATER AND WASTEWATER UNSERVED TABULATIONS
The extent of water and wastewater unserved in the area is important to plan for extension of water and wastewater services in the community. Tables 13

and 14 present tabulations on the numbers of households and population unserved in each of the 17 counties in the Bluegrass ADD.

INSURANCE SERVICE OFFICE (ISO) FIRE INSURANCE RATINGS
Table 15 lists [SO fire insurance ratings in the Bluegrass ADD. Fire insurance ratings are direcly related to the adequacy of the water service in the area
rated to provide required flows for fire protection. Improved service lowers ratings which in turn may lower insurance premiums and are a boon to the
community in terms of reduced expense to the consumer.

POPULATION ESTIMATES
Population growth or decline impacts future needs for water and sewer service. Growing communities experience increased demand for extended
services as well as greater loads on existing facilities. This requires serious planning to assure sufficient resources are available to meet future demand.

Tables 16 and 17 present population estimates for cities and counties in the Bluegrass ADD.
LOCAL TAXES

Communities need services, facilities and infrastructure that usually can only be provided by local government. That vast network of capital-intensive
services (including roads, water provision, sewer services, and slectrical supply) is critical to current and future economic activity of the local communities.
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The mechanisms for funding infrastructure and their role in local spending are complex. Most communities rely on a combination of local tax revenues,
federal and state aid, as well as user fees to generate revenue to maintain existing services, facilities, and infrastructure and to undertake new spending
for capital acquisition to meet current and future needs.

Table 18 presents local tax rates for cities, counties, and special districts in the Bluegrass ADD.




Comparative Water Rate Data
TABLES 1,2and 3

These tables compare monthly water rates at different usage levels. The usage levels were selected, in part, for their ease of conversion to cubic feet
(one hundred cubic feet is approximately equal to 750 gallons):

2,000gal. or 267 c¢f This represents a minimum quantity for many utilities.

3,000gal. or 400 ¢f This could represent the small family of modest means.

4,000gal. or 533 ¢f This is frequently defined as an "average" residential consumption.

6,000 gal. or 800 cf This could represent the average family with children, with cars to wash, and with occasional yard watering.

30,000gal. or 4,000cf This could represent the average commercial establishment, e.g., a busy service station or restaurant.
300,000 gal. or 40,000cf This could represent an industrial customer. (Table 1 only)
For each usage level, the utility's rank among comparabie utilities and the percent deviation from the average are presented.

A column has been added to Table 2 identifying the cost per thousand gallons for that quantity which can be purchased for the minimum monthly water
bill. This quantity varies from city to city, and much care should be exercised in drawing conclusions for this usage level.

For Tables 2 and 3, no “300,000 gallons per month” category is included. This is because few utilities of this population class have such large customers
in terms of water usage.

Table 3 rate data is for 30 different rural/suburban water utilities. Of the utilities whose rates are compared, 23 are "KRS 74" water districts and 8 are
"KRS 273" water associations (non-profit corporations). For the reader unfamiliar with the geographical location of some of the rural water utilities listed,
Table 3 also shows the principal county of service for each.

This publication of the rate book also includes a fold out map of the Kentucky River Locks, Dams & Intakes in Central Kentucky. The Kentucky River is
the backbone of our water source in Central Kentucky. It is our hope that this map wili be a useful tool to remind us of how we are all so closely connected
through our precious water sources.

It should also be noted that pursuant o K.R.S. 151.7283, The Kentucky River Authority is required for each year of the biennium to establish a rate of water
use fees, which shall be based upon the total amount of funds necessary fo carry out the functions, projects and expenses authorized by the Kentucky
General Assembly. Resolution 2007-2 by the Kentucky River Authority passed on December 13, 2007, establishing two withdraw fees for waters taken
from the main stem (Tier | Rates) of the Kentucky River or tributaries to the Kentucky River (Tier Il Rates). Tier | Rates were established at $0.22 per each
one thousand gallons of water withdrawn from the main stem, and Tier Il Rates were established at $0.06 per each one thousand gallons of water use
from tributaries. These rates become effective on April 1, 2008. Some utilities directly pass these charges on to their customers, while other utilities
absorb these costs into their overall operation and maintenance expenses.
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Table 6
Customer, Water Usage, and Purchase Price Data for Water Utilities Purchasing Water for Resale

Average Daily Purchase Effective Daily Purchase %lLine
Number of in in in in Loss
Customers | 1000 gal. | 100 cu. Ft. $/1000 gal. $/100 cu. Ft. | Reported Supplier
Burgin 500 86 11.47 $1.38 $1.03 1.0 Harrodsburg
Clay City 692 97 13.00 2.83 2.12 10.0 Beech Fork
Corinth WD 931 186 24.87 2.63 1.97 2.5 Williamstown
Crab Orchard 564 109 14.51 1.72 1.29 19.0 Lancaster
E. Casey Co. WD 4,031 600 80.21 2.38 1.78 16.0 Liberty
0.00 1.68 1.26 Russell Springs
E. Clark Co. WD 2,320 384 51.33 2.156 1.61 8.3 Winchester
Elkhorn WD 495 258 34.54 1.78 1.33 13.8 Frankfort
Estill Co. WD 3,544 660 88.30 1.97 1.48 16.8 Irvine
Eubank 4,790 950 127.01 2.00 1.50 18.0 Somerset
Farmdale WD 2,512 582 77.81 1.76 1.31 14.9 Frankfort
Garrard Co. WA 5,290 683 91.31 1.78 1.33 15.7 Lancaster
88 11.76 1.97 1.48 Berea
270 36.10 1.67 1.25 Danville
Georgetown MWSS 11,397 396 52.88 1.81 1.35 12.0 Frankfort
14 1.81 2.69 2.01 KAWC
Harrison Co. WA 5,241 930 124.38 1.85 1.38 12.3 Cynthiana
83 11.08 2.35 1.76 KAWC
Hustonville 1,815 362 48.35 1.47 1.10 8.0 Danville
Jessamine Co. WD #1 1,632 485 64.79 1.81 1.35 6.2 Nicholasville
Jessamine South Elkhorn WD 2,514 640 85.58 2.16 1.61 8.2 KAWC
67 8.97 1.81 1.356 Nicholasville
Judy WA 1,804 260 34.72 1.88 1.41 6.6 Mt. Sterling
115 15.38 2.49 1.86 North Middletown
Kirksville WA 1,687 297 39.72 2.26 1.69 12.0 Richmond
Lake Village WA 2,127 508 67.98 1.54 1.16 4.0 Harrodsburg
235 31.36 1.41 1.05 Danville
Madison County Utilities WD 9,845 2,116 282.95 1.69 1.26 14.6 Richmond




Table 6 Customer, Water Usage, and Purchase Price Data for Water Utilities Purchasing Water for Resale continued

Average Daily Purchase Effective Daily Purchase %Line
Number of in in in In Loss
Customers 1000 gal. | 100 cu. Ft, $/1000 gal. $/100 cu. Ft. | Reported Supplier
Midway 727 160 21.37 2.35 1.76 6.0 KAWC
McKinney WD 1,828 283 37.83 2.05 1.53 9.8 Stanford
56 7.49 3.33 2.49 Eubank
Nicholas Co. WD 1,340 118 15.73 N/A N/A 14.0 Carlisle
1 0.07 2,10 1.57 Buffallo Trail WA
0 0.05 2.39 1.79 Millersburg
120 16.01 1.19 0.89 W. Fleming
Nicholasville 10,492 0 0.03 2.00 1.50 N/A KAWC
N.Mercer WD 4,246 866 115.79 1.40 1.04 23.0 Harrodsburg
North Middletown 383 207 27.63 2.01 1.51 14.0 KAWC
N. Shelby Water Co. 4222 69 9.22 1.51 1.13 2.3 Shelbyville
461 61.63 1.78 1.33 Frankfort
600 80.21 1.38 1.03 Louisville Water Co.
Parksville WD 1,556 307 40.98 0.00 0.00 14.8 Danville
Peaks Mill WD 1,050 446 59.68 1.78 1.33 1.0 Frankfort
Powells Valley WD 2,073 363 48.55 1.82 1.44 22.6 Beech Fork
1 0.17 2.45 1.83 Estill Co. WD
Reid Village WD 1,086 a 0.00 1.73 1.29 10.0 Mt. Sterling
Sharpsburg WD 1,423 185 24.73 2.32 1.74 14.5 Bath Co. WD
95 12.70 1.56 1.17 Carlisle
S. Anderson WD 2,565 400 53.48 2.15 1.61 9.0 Lawrenceburg
85 11.36 1.78 1.33 Frankfort
S. Woodford WD 1,471 524 70.03 2.05 1.53 35.0 Versailles
S. Madison WD 4,360 811 108.42 1.96 1.47 8.0 Berea
Stanton 2,300 532 71.17 1.90 1.42 25.0 Beech Fork
Us 60 WD 2,023 474 63.37 1.78 1.33 7.0 Frankfort
Versailles 5,894 4 0.50 2.52 1.89 14.4 KAWC
W. Rockcastle WA 4,062 500 66.84 2.1 1.58 12.0 Mt. Vernon
Average 2,996 348 46.50 $1.93 $1.45 12.4
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Resolution Adopting Wholesale Water Rate

Whereas, the Water Rate Agreement between the City of Lancaster and the Garrard
County Water Association requires an independent third party to review the costs and
methodology in 2009 to identify any need for an increase or decrease in wholesale
water rates; and

Whereas, the City of Lancaster intends that the water system should be self-supporting
and that the costs of operating and maintaining the water system should be fully
supported by the water rates and charges collected from water customers; and

Whereas, the City of Lancaster intends that the cost of operating and maintaining the
water system, including the cost of debt service, should be distributed equitably
between the retail and wholesale customers; and

Whereas, the City of Lancaster has engaged the Municipal & Financial Services Group
to perform a cost-of-service rate study for wholesale water rates; and

Whereas, the Municipal & Financial Services Group has performed the cost-of-service
rate study and recommends that the City of Lancaster should increase wholesale water
rates per thousand gallons by 5.85%, from $1.88 to $1.99, effective July 1, 2009; and

Whereas the Mayor of the City of Lancaster has provided proper notice to the Kentucky
Public Service Commission and the Garrard County Water Association of this revised
rate;

Therefore, Be It Resolved:
The wholesale water rate recommended by the Municipal & Financial Services Group of

$1.99 per thousand gallons is approved effective upon adoption of this resolution,
subject to acceptance and approval by the Kentucky Public Service Commission.
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Critchfield and Critchfield
Certified Public Accountants, LLC
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Danville, Kentucky 40422

Independent Auditor's Report

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lancaster
L.ancaster, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky
(City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing_Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type activities and each major
fund of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky as of June 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows there of for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 31,
2008, on our consideration of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky’s internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit.

Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 2 through 7 and the Budgetary Comparison Information
on pages 30 and 31 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Cot 080 + Coteh A=~

December 31, 2008
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
Year Ended June 30, 2008

The management team for the City of L.ancaster presents this narrative to help our readers review the
accompanying annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2008. We have prepared this
overview and analysis of the City's financial activities to add additional information to the financial
schedules and the note disclosures. Our analysis will examine the financial highlights for this fiscal year
and help explain the format for our readers.

Financial Highlights

> As of June 30, 2008 the City's Assets (page 8) exceeded liabilities by $7,791,167. This amount
includes $1,027,070 of resources that are restricted to specific projects by laws, regulations, or
contractual agreements. Resources in the amount of $959,372 are unrestricted and are available
to fund the City's outstanding obligations and future programs.

» Unrestricted cash balances (page 8) as of June 30, 2008 were $906,342 and current liabilities
payable from unrestricted resources were $344,734. This surplus cash would fund about six
months’ operations.

> Net assets increased by $393,348 (page 9).

> Fund balances (A measure of current financial resources) in the governmental funds decreased
$51,669 to $493,951 (page 12). Of this amount $493,951 (page 10) is unreserved and available
for future programs.

> The general fund unreserved fund balance (page 10), as of June 30, 2008 was $301,668 or about
18% of total general fund expenditures.

Overview of Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to introduce the City's basic financial statements. Basic financial
statements include three major sections: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information to provide additional information that our readers can use to analyze our finances.

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide our readers with an overview of the City's finances, presenting all funds in a more simplified
format. This section is similar to financial reporting used by commercial entities.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all the City’s assets and liabilities, including long-
term debt and capital assets in the governmental funds. The difference between assets and liabilities is
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as transactions occur,
regardless of when the related cash flows are reported. Therefore, some revenues and expenses included
in this statement may reflect cash flows that actually occur in future periods.

Government-wide statements are separated into two major categories: 1) governmental activities that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and 2) business-type activities that are
supported with user fees and charges. Governmental activities include administrative functions, streets,

police, fire, recreation and community programs. Business-type activities include the water fund, sewer
fund and the garbage fund.

2.



The government-wide statements are found on pages 8 and 9 of this report.

Fund financial statements - Funds are used in governmental accounting to separate resources that are
designated for specific programs or activities. The City of Lancaster, like other state and local
governments uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with the laws, regulations, and contractual
agreements that establish the authority for the City’s programs and services. Governments use three
types of funds: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds ~ Funds are used to account for the City's basic services, the same services that
are included in the governmental activities on the government-wide statements. However, the information
in the fund statements is measured differently. Governmental funds focus on current financial resources
rather than economic resources. Therefore, the statements include the short-term resources, such as
cash, investments, receivables that will be collected in the next few months, and liabilities that will be
retired with these monies. This information is important for assessing the City's current financial
resources.

The reconciliation in the fund statements explains the difference between the governmental funds in the
fund statements and the governmental activities found in the government-wide financial statements.
These reconciliations are presented on pages 11 and 13 in the fund statements. These reconciliations will
explain the adjustments necessary to add the long-term resources and liabilities for the government-wide
statements to the current picture presented in the fund statements.

The City maintains two individual governmental funds. Major governmental funds include the General
Fund and Municipal Road Aid Fund. The Municipal Aid Fund is presented as a major fund this year
because it includes significant grant funding from the Commonwealth of Kentucky that provided critical
resources for our community.

The larger funds are presented on pages 10 and 12 as major funds. The governmental fund statements
include a balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.

The City adopts budgets for all funds in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statutes Section 91A.030. The
budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Municipal Road Aid Fund are presented on pages 30 and
31.

Proprietary funds - The City's proprietary funds include three enterprise funds. The enterprise funds
include operations for the water, utility, sewer utility, and garbage disposal. The water, sewer and garbage
funds are presented as major funds on pages 14 through 16.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail.

Notes to the financial statements - Notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the information included in the financial schedules. Notes provide additional details about
the balances and transactions in the City’s financial statements and are presented on pages 17 through
29.

Other Information - The last section of this report includes two types of supplementary information.
Required supplementary Information must be included to conform with generally accepted accounting
principles. Lancaster has elected to include the budgetary comparisons for the General and Municipal Aid
Road Fund with the basic financial statements so that the auditors will provide an opinion on this
information. Management's Discussion and Analysis is classified as required supplementary information.



Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The first statement in the government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Assets. The following table
summarizes the Statement of Net Assets {(page 8).

Net Assets of Governmental and Business-type Activities (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Current and other assets 542 682 1,688 1,362 2,230 2,044
Capital assets 1,208 1,156 7,152 6,972 8,360 8,128
Total assets 1,750 1,838 8,840 8,334 10,590 10,172
Long-term debt outstanding 125 162 2,430 2,528 2,555 2,690
Other liabilities 27 35 217 110 244 145
Total liabilities 152 197 2,647 2,638 2,799 2,835
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 1,083 994 4,722 4,444 5,805 5,438
Restricted 0 0 1,027 252 1,027 252
Unrestricted (deficit) 515 647 444 1,000 959 1,647

Total Net Assets 1,598 1,641 6,193 5,696 7,791 7,337

By far the largest portion of the City's net assets (74%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities. $1.027 million of the City's net assets (page 8) are restricted to
comply with provisions of various laws, regulations, and contractual agreements. Restricted funds in the
business-type activities reflect the reserves required by the water and sewer bond indentures.

The second statement in the government-wide statements is the Statement of Activities. The following
table outlines the major components of this statement.



Change in Net Assets of Governmental and Business-type Activities (in thousands)
Business-type

Governmental Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services -0- -0- 1,841 1,679 1,841 1,679
Operating grants and
contributions 209 202 -0~ -0- 209 202
Capital grants and
contributions -0- -0- 261 744 261 744
General revenues:
Property taxes 851 796 -0- -0- 851 796
License fees and .
permits 121 86 -0- -0- 121 86
Interest and
investment
earnings 13 13 39 31 52 44
Miscellaneous 47 72 24 -0- 71 72
Sale of asset-gain 28 -0- -0- -0- 28 -0-
Total Revenues 1,269 1,169 2,165 2,454 3,434 3,623
Program Expenses:
General Government 321 374 -0- -0- 321 374
Public Safety 825 664 -0- -0- 825 664
Public Services 119 150 -0- -0- 119 150
Water -0- -0- 926 877 926 877
Sewer system -0- -0- 477 443 477 443
Garbage operations -0~ -0~ 266 271 266 271
Interest expense -0- -0- 107 103 107 103
Total Expenses 1,265 1,188 1,776 1,694 3,041 2,882
Excess (deficiency) before
transfers and special items 4 (19) 389 760 393 741
Transfers 105 -0- (105) -0- (- -0~
Increase (decrease) in net
assets 109 (19) 284 760 393 741

$985,000 of the governmental services is financed with property taxes, license fees, and interest earnings.
Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $109,147.

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $284,201. This increase is net of depreciation
expense of $333,904 (a non cash item).



Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The fund statements present the City's financial information in a more detailed format, but there are other
differences as well. Fund statements provide important information about the City's compliance with laws and
regulations that define the local government environment in Kentucky. The measurement principles in the
governmental fund statements are also different than the government-wide statements. Fund statements
focus on current resources, while the government-wide statements present the long-term view.

Governmental funds - Financial information for the City’'s governmental funds is summarized on pages 10
and 12. Governmental fund balances decreased $51,669.

Proprietary funds - The fund statements for the proprietary funds look much like the business-type activities
in the government-wide statements. Proprietary fund financial information is measured with the same
principles used by commercial enterprises, so this information does not change from the fund statements to
the government-wide statements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Budgetary comparison schedules include information about both the original budget and the amended
budget. Generally, budgets are amended to add projects that were not anticipated when the budget was first
adopted. Revenue budgets are usually estimated lower to allow budgetary flexibility for additional projects.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

The City invests substantial resources in capital assets that support the services provided to the pubtic. All of
the City's outstanding bonds have been used to acquire or construct capital assets.

Capital Assets
The City's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation are summarized below:

City of Lancaster, Kentucky Capital Assets (net of depreciation )

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Land 60,000 51,042 111,042
Buildings & maintenance . 839,191 6,456,089 7,295,280
Equipment & vehicles 308,681 402,719 711,400
Construction in progress -0- 241,923 241,923
Total 1,207,872 7,151,773 8,359,645




Long-Term Debt

The principal outstanding on the City's long-term debt is summarized in the following table.

City of Lancaster's Qutstanding Debt

Govermnmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Farmers National Bank $ 125,000 $ 0- 8 125,000
Series 1976 Revenue Bonds-Water -0- 174,000 174,000
Series 1988 Revenue Bonds-Sewer -0~ 959,000 959,000
Series 2000 Revenue Bonds-Water -0 557,000 557,000
Series 2005 Revenue Bonds-Water -0- 415,500 415,500
KIA Loan -Sewer -0- 324,420 324,420
Total $ 125000 § 2,429,920 § 2,554,9200

The City's outstanding debt decreased $135,092.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

We expect the area’s economy to stay at current year levels for the next fiscal year. However, we have
growth concemns for the subsequent year. Our general fund budget for the 2009 fiscal year will have
$1,144,412 in appropriated expenditures.

Contacting the City's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Mayor or City Clerk's
Office, 308 West Maple Avenue, Lancaster, KY 40444, telephone number (859) 792-2241.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Statement of Net Assets Primary Government

June 30, 2008

Business -
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalénts $ 234,198 366,379 $ 600,577
Investments 246,748 59,017 305,765
Prepaid insurance 34,661 17,893 52,554
Accounts receivable:
Property taxes 3,472 -0- 3,472
Customers -0- 161,408 161,408
Grants -0- 56,584 56,584
Other receivables 22,633 -0- 22,633
Accrued interest -0- -0- -0-
Total Current Assets 541,712 661,281 1,202,993
Non-current Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents -0- 578,905 578,905
Restricted investments -0- 448,165 448,165
Capital assets:
Land 60,000 51,042 111,042
Construction in progress -0- 241,923 241,923
Infrastructure -0- -0~ -0-
Other Capital Assets 1,305,957 13,555,145 14,861,102
Less accumulated depreciation (158,085) (6,696,337) (6,854,422)
Capital assets, net 1,207,872 7,151,773 8,359,645
Total Non-current Assets 1,207,872 8,178,843 9,386,715
Total Assets $ 1,749,584 8,840,124 $ 10,589,708
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 13,101 146,545 3 159,646
Accrued wages 8,443 4,905 13,348
Deposits -0- 40,585 40,585
Current portion of loan obligations -0- 101,113 101,113
Interest payable 5,294 24,748 30,042
Total Current Liabilities 26,838 317,896 344,734
Non-current Liabilities
Non-current portion of loan obligations 125,000 2,328,807 2,453,807
Total Non-current Liabilities 125,000 2,328,807 2,453,807
Total Liabilities 151,838 2,646,703 2,798,541
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt ’ 1,082,872 4,721,853 5,804,725
Restricted:
Bond reserves -0- 157,249 157,248
Depreciation reserve -0- 869,821 869,821
Unrestricted 514,874 444,498 959,372
Total Net Assets 1,687,746 6,193,421 7,791,167
Total Net Assets & Liabilities § 1,748,584 8,840,124 $ 10,589,708

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities
General Government
Public Safety
Public Services

Total governmental activities
Business-Type Activities
Water
Sewer system
Garbage operations
interest Expense

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements

-g-

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
(321,582) % 0-  § -0- § -0- (321,582) -0- (321,582)
(824,639) -0~ 97,961 -0- (726,678) -0- (726,678)
(118,668) -0- 110,551 -0- (8,117) -0- (8,117)
(1,264,889) -0- 208,512 -0- (1,056,377) -0- {1,056,377)
(926,209) 1,097,516 -0- 62,110 -0- 233,417 233,417
(477,208) 478,989 -0- 198,595 -0- 200,376 200,376
{(265,324) 264,923 -0- -0- -0- (401) (401)
(107,112) -0- -0- -0- -0- (107,112) (107,112)
(1,775,853) 1,841,428 -0- 260,705 -0- 326,280 326,280
(3.040,742) 3 1,841,428 $ 208,512 % 260,705 {1,056,377) 326,280 {730,097)

General revenues:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 850,891 -0- 850,891
License fees and permits, levied for general purposes 32,709 -0- 32,709
Interest earnings 12,603 39,499 52,102
Fines & forfeitures 88,475 -0- 88,475
Gain on sale of capital asseis 28,261 -0- 28,261
Miscellaneous 47,101 23,906 71.007
Transfers 105,484 (105,484) -0-
Total general revenues and transfers 1,165,524 (42,079) 1,123,445
Change in net assets 109,147 284 201 393,348
Net Assets — July 1, 2007 1,460,612 5,876,505 7,337,117
Prior period adjustments 27,987 32,716 60,702
Net Assets — June 30, 2008 1,597,746 % 6,193,421 7,791,167




Fund Financial Statements



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments
Accounts receivable:
Property taxes
Utility franchise tax
Other receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Jtal liabilities

Fund Balances
Reserved
Unreserved

Total fund balances

Total liahilities and fund balances

City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Municipal Total
General Road Aid Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
$ 153,484 § 80,714 234,198
134,408 112,340 246,748
3,472 -0- 3,472
14,391 -0- 14,391
8,243 -0~ 8,243
$ 313,998 § 193,053 507,052
$ 12,331 § 770 13,101
12,331 770 13,101
-0- Q- -0-
301,668 192,283 493,951
301,668 192 283 493,951
$ 313999 $ 193,053 507,052

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to

The Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2008

Total fund balance per fund financial statements

Ampounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:

Prepaid expense - insurance

Capital assets are not reported in this fund financial statement because
they are not current financial resources, but they are reported in the
statement of net assets.

Governmental capital assets
L.ess accumulated depreciation

Certain liabilities (such as bonds payable, the long-term portion of accrued
sick leave, and accrued interest) are not reported in this fund financial
statement because they are not due and payable, but they are presented
in the statement of net assets.

L.oan agreements
Accrued interest payable
Accrued wages

Net assets for governmental activities

493,951
34,661
$ 1,365,957
(158,085) 1,207,872
$ (125,000)
(5,294)
(8,444) (138,738)
1,597,746

See accompanying notes to findncial statements
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Municipal Total
General Road Aid Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 850,891 $ -0- 8§ 850,891
Licenses & permits 32,708 -0- 32,709
Fines & forfeitures 88,475 -0- 88,475
Intergovernmental revenues 97,961 110,551 208,512
Interest 6,807 5,796 12,603
Other 41,041 6,060 47,101
Total revenues 1,117,884 122,407 1,240,291
Expenditures:
Current operating:
General Government 285,549 -0- 285,549
Public Safety 754,921 -0- 754,921
Public Services -0- 118,668 118,668
Capital outlay 282,873 -0- 282,873
Debt service:
Principal 337,365 -0- 337,365
Interest 8,068 -0- 8,068
Total expenditures 1,668,776 118,668 1,787,444
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before transfers and
other sources (650,892) 3,739 (547,153)
Transfers and other financing sources:
Bank financing 300,000 -0- 300,000
Sale of cruisers 80,000 -0- 80,000
Transfers in 105,484 -0- 105,484
Transfers out -0- -0- -0-
Total transfers and other sources 495 484 -0- 495,484
Excess (deficiency) revenues over
expenditures (55,408) 3,739 (51,669)
Fund bhalances ~ July 1, 2007 357,076 188,544 545,620
Fund balances — June 30, 2008 $ 301,668 $ 192,283 § 493,951

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Net change in total fund balances per fund financial statements

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Loan proceeds
Capital asset sale proceeds

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in this fund financial statement
because they use current financial resources, but they are presented as
assets in the statement of activities and depreciated over their estimated
economic lives. The difference is the amount by which capital outlays
exceed depreciation expense for the year.

Increase in capital assets
Depreciation expense

Loan payments are recognized as expenditures of current financial
resources in the fund financial statement but are reductions of liabilities in
the statement of net assets.

Generally, expenditures recognized in this fund financial statement are
limited to only thase that use current financial resources, but expenses are
recognized in the statement of activities when they are incurred.

Prepaid insurance expense

Accrued Interest expense
Accrued wages

Change in net assets for governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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$ (51,669)
(300,000)
(61,739)
282,873
(91,565) 191,308
337,365
2,829
(5,294)
(3,653) (6,118)

$ 109,147



June 30, 2008
Water Sewer Garbage Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 278,778 $ 49,258 38,343 366,379
Investments -0~ ~0- 59,017 59,017
Receivable from customers (less ailowance
for uncollectible accounts) 92,980 46,285 22,143 161,408
Receivable — grants -0- 56,584 -0- 56,584
Prepaid insurance expense 8,298 5,956 3,639 17,893
Total current assets 380,056 158,083 123,142 661,281
Non-current Assets
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 302,767 276,138 -0- 578,905
Restricted investments -0~ 448,165 ~0- 448,165
Capital assets:
Land 36,767 14,275 -0- 51,042
Construction in progress -0- 241,923 -0- 241,923
Other capital assets 8,352,408 5,102,946 99,791 13,555,145
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,527,832) (3,136,905) (31,600) (6,896,337)
Capital assets, net 4,861,343 2,222 239 68,191 7,151,773
Total Non-current assets 5,164,110 2,946,542 68,191 8,178,843
Total assets $ 5,544,166 $ 3,104,625 191,333 8,840,124
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 42,776 $ 92,121 11,648 146,545
Accrued wages 2,049 1,744 1,112 4,905
Deposits 40,585 -0- -0- 40,585
Current portion of loan obligation 72,113 29,000 -0- 101,113
Interest payable 12,760 11,988 -0- 24,748
Total current liabilities 170,283 134,853 12,760 317,896
Non-current Liabilities
Non-current portion of loan obligation 1,398,807 930,000 -0- 2,328,807
Total non-current liabilities 1,398,807 930,000 -0~ 2,328,807
Total Liabilities 1,569,090 1,064,853 12,760 2,646,703
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,380,423 1,263,239 68,191 4,721,853
Restricted:
Bond reserves 93,532 63,717 -0- 157,249
Depreciation reserve 209,235 660,586 -0- 869,821
Unrestricted 606,306 (272,190) 110,382 444,498
Total Net Assets 4,299,496 1,715,352 178,573 6,193,421
Total Net Assets & Liabilities $ 5,544 166 $ 3,104,625 191,333 8,840,124

City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Water Sewer Garbage Total
Jperating Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,060,423 $ 478,989 $ 264,923 $ 1,804,335
Connection fees 37,083 -0- -0- 37,093
Miscellaneous 7,168 16,738 -0- 23,906
Total operating revenues 1,104,684 495,727 264,923 1,865,334
Jperating Expenses:
Personal services 196,195 198,187 123,691 519,073
Maintenance, operations & contractual services 338,030 92,250 110,522 540,802
Materials and supplies 178,697 75,133 21,132 274,962
Depreciation 213,287 110,638 9,979 333,904
Total operating expenses 926,209 477,208 265,324 1,668,741
Jperating income (loss) 178,475 18,519 (401) 186,593
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue 7,837 28,751 2,911 39,499
1terest expense (58,112) {49,000) -0- (107,112)
Grants 62,110 198,595 -0- 260,705
Total non-operating revenues 11,835 178,346 2,911 193,082
Net income (loss) before transfers 190,310 196,865 2,510 389,685
Transfers:
Transfers in -0- -0- -0- -0-
Transfers out (83,487) (15,000) (6,997) (105,484)
Change in net assets 108,823 181,865 (4,487) 284,201
rotal net assets, July 1, 2007 4,185,410 1,5103931 180,164 5,876,505
‘rior period adjustments 7,263 22,556 2,896 32,715
Total net assets, June 30, 2008 $ 4,299,496 $ 1,715,352 $ 178,573 $ 6,193,421

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments for personal services
Other

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Prepaid insurance prior period
Transfer to general fund
Customer deposits

Net cash provided by non-capital financing

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchases of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Capital improvement grant
Capital improvement payable

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
Financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest revenue
investments in certificate of deposit

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash & Cash Equivalents, beginning of year

Cash & Cash Equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (loss) to Net Cash
Provided (used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
Provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net decrease (increase)
Accounts and other payables increase (decrease)
Prepaid insurance

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Water Sewer Garbage Total
$ 1,104,498 § 492,552 § 267,194 $ 1,864,244
(171,168) (77,116) (13,695) (261,979)
(194,146) (197,443) (122,579) (514,168)
(346,328) (98,204) (114,161) (5658,693)
392,856 119,789 16,759 529,404
7,263 22,556 2,896 32,715
(83,487) (15,000) (6,997) (105,484)
2,990 -0- -0- 2,990
(73,234) 7,556 (4,101) (69,779)
(173,419) (261,764) -0- (435,183)
(79,073) (28,000) -0~ (107,073)
(58,112) (49,350) -0- (107,462)
62,110 142,011 -0- 204,121
-0- 82,087 -0- 82,087
(248 ,494) (115,0186) -0- (363,510)
7,837 28,751 2,911 39,499
-0- (448,165) (59,017) (507,182)
7,837 (419,414) (56,1086) (467,683)
78,965 (407,085) (43,448) (371,568)
502,580 732,481 81,791 1,316,852
3 581,545 & 325,386 % 38,343 § 945,284
$ 178,475 % 18,519 § (401) $ 196,593
213,287 110,638 9,979 333,904
(186) (3,175) 2,271 (1,090)
9,578 (239) 8,549 17,888
(8,298) (5,954) (3,639 (17,891)
$ 392,856 3 119,789 $ 16,759 §$ 529,404
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the City of Lancaster (City) conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

Reporting Entity

The City of Lancaster, Kentucky, was incorporated on February 23, 1837, under the provisions of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation, planning and
zoning, and general administrative services. Other services include water and sewer operations. The City has
evaluated various organizations with which it is related and determined that there are no component units as
defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” and as
amended by Statement No.39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units”. Therefore,
there are no component units included in the City's reporting entity.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges o customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, (if any)
even though the fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the full accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and

similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE A -~ Summary.of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reparted using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Grant revenues are an
exception, as they are considered available when eligible expenditures have occurred even though they may be
collected for up to one year after the current fiscal year end. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded when the liability has matured, with the
exception of interest and principal which are recognized as expenditures when funds are transferred to the debt
service fund to make payments due shortly after the fiscal year end.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue, intergovernmental revenue, and charges for services
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Fines, permits, net profit tax revenues and special assessments are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the City.

Funds are classified into these categories; governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required o be accounted for in another fund.

The municipal aid fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures of funds related to the Kentucky
Street Improvement Program.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The water utility fund, sewer utility fund and garbage fund account for the activities of the utility and garbage
services provided to the residents of the City and the surrounding areas.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also
have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise
funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments from the various funds to the general fund to
compensate the general fund for administrative services provided.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general
revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer fund are
charges to customers for sales and services. The water and sewer fund also recognizes as operating revenue the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses
for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make use of estimates that affect reported amounts in the
basic financial statements. Actual results could differ from estimates.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1. Cash deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments, which consist of highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less from the
date of acquisition.

Kentucky Revised Statute 66.480 generally limits the City to investing in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, repurchase agreements, obligations of the Commonwealth of Kentucky and its agencies, insured
savings and loans, and interest bearing deposits of insured national or state banks. The deposits in excess of
insurance coverage must be fully collateralized.

Certain cash amounts are classified on ‘the statement of net assets as restricted because applicable bond
indentures or other legal provisions limit their use. Restricted cash and cash equivalents are included and used for
their respective purpose.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity - continued

2. Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/ffrom other funds” (i.e., the current portion of inter-fund loans) or
‘advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of inter-fund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances”.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for un-collectibles. Trade accounts receivable
in excess of 90 days comprise the trade accounts receivable allowance for un-collectibles. The property tax
receivable allowance is based on varying percentages depending on the age of the receivable.

3. Inventories

Inventory of supplies and materials is charged to expenditures when purchased. Therefore, the City does not have
any inventory to report.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of the Water and Sewer Fund debt have been classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants. The restricted assets have been accounted for in accordance with the
provisions of the Water and Sewer Fund revenue bond resolutions or with state or federal laws and regulations.

Debt Service Reserve - The City is required to set aside the maximum annual debt service. The City must
continue deposits into the debt service reserve until the funds equal the amount required to retire all outstanding
bonds and related accrued interest.

Depreciation Reserve - Revenue bond covenants require the City to set aside $5,652 monthly until $114,612 is
accumulated in the account. Also, Kentucky Infrastriicture Authority covenants require the City to transfer annually
$4,750 to a replacement reserve until $39,073 is accumulated in the account. The City made its final payment on
October 1, 2007.

5 - Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (i.e., roads, bridges, sidewalks and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-
wide financial statements. The City has elected to prospectively report newly acquired or constructed general
infrastructure assets, pursuant to the provisions of GASB Statement 34.

Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. All purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical
records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets
are valued at fair market value on the date received.
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City Of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements — Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

5 - Capital Assets - continued

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful fives of the
related capital assets, as applicable.

Infrastructure, buildings, improvements, plant, equipment, and other capital assets of the government are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Infrastructure 10-50 Years
Buildings 20-50 Years
Improvements 10-20 Years
Water & Sewer Distribution System 10-50 Years
Machinery & Equipment 5-10 Years
Vehicles 3-10 Years

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of
the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

6 — Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay have not been accrued because the employees have no vested or
accumulated rights.

7 - Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs and bond discounts are
deferred and amortized over the term of the related issues. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
discounts and issuance costs.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

8 - Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not

available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of
fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued
9 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balances in the governmental funds
and net assets reported in the government-wide statements. These adjustments reflect the changes necessary to
report the governmental fund balances on the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting. Capital assets and long-term debt are added to the governmental funds to compile the long-term view
of the governmental activities column.

A similar reconciliation is included on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for
the governmental funds. These adjustments reflect the transition from the modified accrual accounting for
governmental funds to the accrual basis of accounting for the statement of activities. Capital outlay is replaced
with depreciation expense. Capital lease revenues are added, while principal payments on long-term debt are
eliminated from the operating costs.

NOTE B - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information

The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements.

Kentucky Revised Statutes 91A.030 requires the preparation and adoption of an annual budget in the form of an
appropriations ordinance before the City may expend any monies from any governmental or proprietary fund and
prohibits expenditures or expenses in excess of appropriations. KRS further provides that the full amount of debt
service be appropriated. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

To meet the legal requirements for appropriations, all budgets are presented on a modified accrual basis. For
proprietary funds this means that certain capitalized receipts and disbursements are budgeted along with related
revenue and expense, that depreciation, a non-cash expenditure, is not budgeted, and that the full amount of debt
service is budgeted.

Under Kentucky Revised Statutes, all local government units are required to have a June 30 fiscal year-end. The
City of Lancaster has a June 30 fiscal year-end.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments and in order to comply with various federal and state
mandates.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance by the city.

Formal budgetary integration is utilized as a management conirol device for all governmental fund types and the
Water and Sewer Fund.

An encumbrance system under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures of

monies are recorded is maintained. Encumbrances maintained at year-end do not constitute expenditures or
liabilities. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are re-appropriated in the next budget year.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE B - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - continued
Property taxes |

The City bills and collects its property taxes through the Garrard County Sheriff's Office. The City elects to use
annual property assessments prepared by the Garrard County Property Valuation Administrator. According to the
Kentucky Revised Statutes, the assessment date for the City must conform to the January 1 assessment date of
Garrard County.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, taxes were levied November 1, 2007 and were payable by December 31, 2007
A 2% penalty was imposed on all taxes delinguent as of January 1, 2008 and a 10% penalty was imposed on all
taxes delinquent as of February 1, 2008.

The City is permitted by Section 157 of the Constitution of Kentucky to levy taxes up to $1.00 per $100 assessed
valuation for general governmental services other than school purposes. lLegislation passed by the Kentucky
General Assembly imposed severe limits on the ability of a city to significantly increase property tax revenues. A
city may not increase its revenues from taxes on real property, exclusive of increases due to assessment growth
without giving notice of such an increase and holding a public hearing on the matter. If that increase is less than
4%, that is all that is necessary, but if the increase is more than 4%, residents of the City may petition for an
election to be held on the guestion. If the majority of those voting in a valid election vote against the proposed rate
increase, the rate must be rolled back to one which will not produce more than a 4% increase. City tax rates of 15
cenis per $100 on real property, 25 cents per $100 on personal property, and 23.3 cents per $100 on vehicles for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, are within permissible limits under the above legislation.

NOTE C - Cash Deposits and Investments

Deposits

The City is required by Kentucky Revised Statutes to have the financial institution pledge securities having a
current quoted market value at least equal to the uninsured deposits. At year end, the carrying amount of the City's
deposits and investments was $1,933,412 and the bank balance was $1,945,949. Of the bank balance $200,000
was covered by federal depository insurance and $1,745,949 was covered by collateral held in the SunTrust Bank
in the City's name.

Investments

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets at June 3Q,
2008 is as foliows:

Carrying Value Value Per Bank

Deposits ' b 1,179,482 $ 1,192,019
Investments 753,930 753,930

Total 5 1,933,412 1,945,949
Cash and cash equivalents $ 600,577
Investments 305,765
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 578,905
Investments-restricted CD’s 448,165

Total 3 1,933,412
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE C —~ Cash Deposits and Investments - continued

Interest Rate Risk. The City does not have an investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure fo fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
One hundred percent of the City’s investments are in bank certificates of deposits (fully insured or collateralized). .

Concentration of credit risk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may invest in any one issuer. The City
has 100.0% of its investments in bank certificates of deposit (in 2 different banks).

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that, in the event of failure by a
financial institution, the City may not be able to recover the value of its deposits and investments that are in the
possession of the financial institution. The City’s investment policy dictates that all cash maintained in any financial
institution named as a depository be insured or collateralized, the collateral held in the name of the City, and that
investments be registered in the name of the City. Collateral must be held by an independent third-party custodian.
The City is fully collateralized and all investments were held in the City's name as of June 30, 2008.

NOTE D — Capital Assets
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 22,024
Public Safety 69,541

$ 91565

Business-type activities:

Water $ 213,287
Sewer 110,638
Garbage 9,979

$ 333,904
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE D ~ Capital Assets - continued

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities:
Land 3 60,000 § - 5 - $ 60,000
Buildings 880,977 880,977
Equipment and vehicles 374,195 282,873 (232,088) 424,980
Infrastructure - - - -
Total cost 1,315,172 282,873 (232,088) 1,365,957
Buildings (19,762) (22,024) - (41,786)
Equipment and vehicles (138,937) (69,541) 92,179 (116,299)
Infrastructure - - - -
Total accumulated depreciation (158,699) (91,565) 92,179 (158,085)
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 1,156,473 § 191,308 $ (139,909) $ 1,207,872
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities:
Land 5 51,042 § - 3 - 3 51,042
Water and Sewer plant 11,807,159 186,106 - 11,993,265
Equipment 1,326,031 7,133 - 1,333,184
Vehicles 128,905 99,791 - 228,696
Construction in progress - 241,923 - 241,923
Total cost 13,313,137 534,973 - 13,848,110
Water and Sewer plant (5,235,447) (301,729) - (5,537,176)
Equipment (990,111) (17,290) - (1,007,401)
Vehicles (115,254) (36,506) - (151,760)
Total accumulated depreciation (6,340,812) (355,525) - (6,696,337)
Business-type activities capital assets, net $. 6,972,325 % 179,448 $ 03 7,151,773
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE E — Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The City participates in two statewide local government retirement systems. Both are multiple-employer, cost-sharing
public employee pension plans. One plan, the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for
Hazardous Position Employees (CERSH) covers all hazardous position public safety employees. The other plan, the
Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees’ Retirement System for Non-Hazardous Position Employees (CERSNH)
covers all government employees not covered by the CERSH. Certain medical insurance benefits are provided to retirees
covered by the CERSH and CERSNH.

Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for Non-hazardous Position Employees (CERSNH)

1 - Plan Description

The City contributes to the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for Non-Hazardous
Employees (CERSNH) for all of the City's full-time employees or the CERSH. The CERSNH is a cost sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefits pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement Systems. CERSNH provides retirement
and disability benefits and death benefits to members and beneficiaries. Cost of living adjustments are provided at the
discretion of the state legislature. Kentucky Revised Statutes Section 61.645 assigns the authority to administer the
CERSNH to the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS). The Kentucky Retirement System issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplemental information for CERSNH.
That report may be obtained by writing Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road,
Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601 or by calling 502-564-4646.

2 - Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 5% of their annual salaries and the City is required to contribute an actuarially
determined amount. The current rate is 16.17% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members
and the City are established and may be amended by the KRS Board of Trustees. The City's contribution for the year
ending June 30, 2008, was $66,520. Covered wages for plan participants were $411,380.

Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for Hazardous Position Employees (CERSH)

1 - Plan Description

The City contributes to the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for Hazardous Employees
(CERSH) for all of the city's full-time hazardous position public safety employees. The CERSH is a cost sharing, multiple-
employer defined benefits pension plan administered by the Kentucky Retirement Systems. CERSH provides retirement
and disability benefits and death benefits to members and beneficiaries. Cost of living adjustments are provided at the
discretion of the State legislature. Kentucky Revised Statutes Section 61.645 assigns the authority to administer the
CERSH to the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems (KRS). The Kentucky Refirement Systems issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplemental information for CERSH.
This report may be obtained by writing Kentucky Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road,
Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601 or by calling 502-564-4646.

2 - Funding Policy
Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their annual salaries and the City is required to contribute an actuarially
determined amount. The current rate is 33.87% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirement of plan members

and the City are established and may be amended by the KRS Board of Trustees. The City's contribution for the year
ending June 30, 2008, was $112,908. Covered wages for plan participants were $333,358.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE E -~ Defined Benefit Pension Plans - continued

Medical Insurance Plan

Plan description — In addition to the pension benefits described above, Kentucky Revised Statues require CERS to provide
post-retirement healthcare benefits to eligible members and dependents. The CERS Medical Insurance benefit are cost-
sharing multipie employer defined benefit plans. Changes made to the medical plan may be made by the CERS Board of
Trustees, the Kentucky Department of Employee Insurance and the General Assembly.

To be eligible for medical benefits, the member must have retired either for service or disability. The CERS Medical Insurance
Funds offer coverage to members under the age of 65 through the Kentucky Employees Health Plan administered by the

Kentucky Department of Employee Insurance. Once retired members and eligible spouses attain age 65 and are Medicare
eligible, coverage is obtained through the Medicare Eligible Health Plan.

NOTE F - Long Term Debt

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds outstanding at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

City of Lancaster Original Maturity Debt
Water & Sewer Issue Interest Date Outstanding

Revenue Bonds Amount Rate Fiscal Year June 30, 2008
Series 1976 455,000 5.0% 2016 174,000
Series 1988 1,300,000 5.0% 2028 859,000
Series 2000 600,000 4.375% 2040 557,000
Series 2005A 250,000 4.375% 2045 247,000
Series 20058 170,000 4.25% 2045 168,500
2,105,500

Revenue Bond Debt Service Requirements

The annual principal and interest requirements of the water and sewer revenue bonds payable
as of June 30, 2008, are as follows:

Water Sewer
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2009 $ 31,200 § 51,038 $ 29,000 47,950 § 159,188
2010 32,300 49,563 31,000 46,500 159,363
2011 34,100 48,033 32,000 44 950 159,083
2012 35,800 46,418 34,000 43,350 159,568
2013 37,500 44,724 35,000 41,650 158,874
2014 38,800 42,948 37,000 39,900 158,648
2015 42,000 41,111 39,000 38,050 160,161
2016-20 121,400 182,434 226,000 159,000 688,834
2021-25 118,700 158,421 287,000 96,650 660,771
2026-30 146,400 130,273 209,000 21,250 506,923
2031-35 181,700 95,425 -0- Q- 277,125
2036-40 225,400 52,198 -0~ -0- 277,598
2041-45 101,200 13,534 -0- -0- 114,734
$ 1,146,500 $ 956,120 $ 959,000 579,250 $ 3,640,870
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2008

NOTE F - Long Term Debt - continued

Total Debt Service by Bond Series

Series 1976 Revenue Bonds Water $
Series 1988 Revenue Bonds Sewer
Series 2000 Revenue Bonds Water
Series 2005 Revenue Bonds Water

Bond Covenants and Provisions

Principal Interest Total Payment
174,000 $ 41,550 $ 215,550
959,000 579,250 1,538,250
557,000 488,250 1,045,250
415,500 426,320 841,820
3 2,105,500 % 1,635,370 % 3,640,870

Under the various bond Ordinances passed for the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, certain covenants and provisions
for the collection, segregation, and distribution of revenues of the water and sewer system were established.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City is in substantial compliance with all covenants and provisions of the loan

agreements.

Water Fund Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Loan

On December 1, 1995, the City entered into an agreement with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to borrow $781,462
with an interest rate of 1.7% to be repaid over a twenty year period. The proceeds of this loan were used to fund an
expansion of the City’'s Water Treatment Plant.

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Loan outstanding at June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Description of Issue

KIA Loan

Original Issue Maturity Date Debt Qutstanding
Amount Interest Rate Fiscal Year June 30, 2008
$ 781,462 1.7% 2015 3 324,420

The annual principal and interest requirements of the above loan are as follows:

Year Ending Total
June 30, Principal interest Payment

2009 $ 40,913 $ 5,970 $ 46,883
2010 41,612 5,190 46,802
2011 42,323 4,395 46,718
2012 43,045 3,688 46,633
2013-2015 156,527 5,892 162,519
$ 324420 $ 25,135 $ 349,555

Certain Covenants contained in the above loan agreements are as follows:

1} The City shaill maintain service charges for water and sewer activities sufficient to pay the Authority the minimum
sums set forth in the loan agreement.
2) The City shall place $4,750 into a “replacement reserve account” on or before December 1 of each year. These
annual deposits are to be made until the balance reaches $39,073 and maintained for the life of the loan. The final
payment was made October 1, 2007.
3) Other miscellaneous provisions.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City is in substantial compliance with all covenants and provisions of the KIA

loan agreements.

This ioan is subordinate to any previous debt of the City, including U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural Development

Debt.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Notes to Basic Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2008

NOTE F — Long Term Debt - continued
Summary of Debt Transactions

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2008, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance. Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
Loan obligations-due bank $ 162,365 $ 300,000 $ (337,365) $ 125,000 % -0-
Governmental activity long-term liabilities $ 162,365 % 300,000 $ (337,365) $ 125,000 $ -0~
Business Type Activities
L.oan obligations:
Bonds — Water Fund $ 1,176,000 $ 0- % (29,500) % 1,146,500 $ 31,200
Bonds ~ Sewer Fund 987,000 -0- (28,000) 959,000 29,000
Total bonds payable 2,163,000 -0- (57,500) 2,105,500 60,200
KIA Loans — Water Fund 364,647 -0- (40,227) 324,420 40,913
Business type long-term liabilities 3 2,527,647 % -0- % (97,727) % 2,429,920 $ 101,113

NOTE G - Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally
the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this
time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

There are no lawsuits or pending litigation that the City believes will have a material affect on its financial statements.
NOTE H - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; natural disasters; and workers' compensation claims. Significant losses are covered by commercial insurance
for all major programs except unemployment compensation and workers' compensation, for which the City retains risk of
loss. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from prior years. Also, there
have been no settlements exceeding insurance coverage for each of the past three years. The City participates in two
pooled self-insurance programs sponsored by the Kentucky League of Cities. These include unemployment compensation
and workers' compensation.

NOTE I — Transfers of funds

Type From fund To fund ° Purpose Amount
Operating Water General Debt Service 3 83,487
Operating Sewer General Debt Service 15,000
Operating Garbage General Debt Service 6,997

§ 105484

NOTE J -- Economic Dependency

The Water Depariment sells approximately 65% of its water to two wholesale users. The contract with these two wholesale
users runs through December 31, 2028.
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance
With Final
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budget
Amounts Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 818,600 $ 818,600 $ 850,891 § 32,291
Licenses & permits 13,000 13,000 32,709 19,708
Fines & forfeitures 1,000 1,000 88,475 87,475
Intergovernmental revenues 41,260 41,260 97,961 56,701
interest 1,000 1,000 6,807 5,807
Other 148,960 148,960 41,041 (107,819)
Total revenues 1,023,820 1,023,820 1,117,884 94,064
Expenditures:
Current operating:
General Government 271,076 271,075 285,549 (14,474)
Public Safety 755,450 755,450 754,921 529
Capital outlay -0~ -0- 282,873 (282,873)
Debt service:
Principal -0- -0- 337,365 (337,365)
Interest -0- -0- 8,068 (8,068)
Total expenditures 1,026,525 1,026,525 1,668,776 (642,251)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before transfers and (2,705) (2,705) {550,892) (548,187)
other sources
Transfers and other financing sources:
Bank financing -0- -0- 300,000 300,000
Sale of cruisers -0- -0- 90,000 90,000
Transfers in -0- -0- 105,484 105,484
Total transfers and other sources -0- -0- 495,484 495,484
Excess (deficiency) revenues over
expenditures (2,705) (2,705) (55,408) (52,703)
Fund balances — July 1, 2007 357,076 357,076 357,076 -0~
Fund balances — June 30, 2008 3 354,371 § 354,371 $ 301,668 $ (52,703)
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City of Lancaster, Kentucky

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenues:

Municipal road aid
Interest

Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current operating:
Streets

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures before transfers and
other sources

Transfers and other financing sources:

Transfers in {out)

Total transfers and other sources
Excess (deficiency) revenues over
expenditures
Fund balance - July 1, 2007

Fund balance — June 30, 2008

Budget and Actual - Municipal Road Aid

For the year ended June 30, 2008

$

Variance
With Final
Budgeted Amounts Actual Budget
Amounts Positive
Original Final GAAP Basis (Negative)
60,000 $ 60,000 67,909 7,909
150 150 5,796 5,646
810 810 48,702 47,892)
60,960 60,960 122,407 61,447
151,063 151,063 118,668 32,395
151,063 151,063 118,668 32,395
(90,103) (90,103) 3,739 93,842
-0- -0- -D- -0-
-0- -0- -0~ -0-
(80,103) (90,103) 3,739 93,842
188,544 188,544 188,544 -0-
98,441 § 798,441 192,283 93,842
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Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards




Critchfield and Critchfield

Certified Public Accountants, LLC
336 West Broadway
Danville, Kentucky 40422

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lancaster
Lancaster, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008,
which collectively comprise the City of Lancaster, Kentucky basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon
dated December 31, 2008. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted U.S. auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Lancaster, Kentucky's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control over
financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky's financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We consider
the deficiencies described below to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting.

Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

{(A) The City is not able to adequately segregate accounting and asset custodial duties. This is principally due to the limited
number of office employees.

We recommend the City review all procedures to assure that maximum segregation of accounting and asset custodial
duties that can be accomplished with existing staff is obtained.

Management response; We agree with the recommendation. Staffing constraints limit what we can do to adequately
segregate accounting and the asset custodial duties. However, we will review our procedures to assure we segregate
‘these duties whenever possible.
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(B) The City is not complying with the requirements of its purchase order system. Purchase orders are often incomplete;
they lack cost information, or autherization and approval information.

We recommend the City monitor the purchase order process to assure compliance and accuracy.

Management response: We will review our purchase order policy and increase our monitoring to assure compliance with
the policies.

(C) The City does not have a policy and procedures manual. Financial accounting policies, procedures and internal
controls should be documented in this manual.

We recommend the City develop a policy and procedures manual.

Management response: We agree written documentation will result in better operations. An accounting procedures and
internal control manual will be developed.

(D) The City did not comply with the budget requirements of KRS 91A.030. It failed to budget general fund capital
expenditures and debt service expenditures.

We recommend the City monitor its expenditures and whenever necessary amend its budget to assure expenditures are
fully authorized in an approved budget.

Management response: We will monitor this and amend future budgets when necessary. All expenditures made over
budget were approved by the council and are viable, necessary expenses. We also did not make expenditures in excess
of the revenues available for the fiscal year.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a
remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the City of
Lancaster, Kentucky’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses.
However, of the significant deficiencies described above, we consider all items to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and other matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Lancaster, Kentucky’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. Finding D above discloses a noncompliance with KRS
91A.030 budget requirements. Please see management response above.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky in a separate letter dated
December 31, 2008.

This report is intended solely for the information of members of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky City Commission,
management, and regulatory agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Coteh il + CotA4Ae

December 31, 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Council Persons
City of Lancaster, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Lancaster's
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky, at June 30, 2007, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28,
2007, on our consideration of the City of Lancaster, Kentucky's internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered

in assessing the results of our audit.



The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 - 9 and 18 -
19 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Lancaster, Kentucky's basic financial statements. The supplementary information
provided on pages 33 to 47 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

y o ¢ Co P

Certified Bublic Accountants

Louisville, Kentucky
November 28, 2007



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

The management team for the City of Lancaster presents this narrative to help our readers review the
accompanying annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2007. We have prepared this
overview and analysis of the City's financial activities to add additional information to the financial
schedules and the note disclosures.

Financial Highlights

» As of June 30, 2007 the City's assets (page 10) exceeded liabilities by $ 7,337,142. This amount
includes $§ 439,115 of resources that are restricted to specific projects by laws, regulations, or
contractual agreements. Resources in the amount of $ 6,898,027 are unrestricted and are
available to fund the City's outstanding obligations and future programs.

Unrestricted cash balances (page 10) as of June 30 were § 1,416,145 and current liabilities
payable from unrestricted resources were $ 405,143. This surplus cash would fund about 10
months' operations.

v

» Net assets increased by $ 741,262 (pagell).

Fund balances (a measure of current financial resources) in the governmental funds decreased
$118,426 to $ 646,694 (pagel2). Of this amount, $ 460,019 (pagel2) is unreserved and available
for future programs.

\74

The General Fund unreserved fund balance (pagel2), as of June 30, 2007 was $ 460,019 or about
35.2% of total general fund expenditures.

Y

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's discussion and analysis are intended to introduce the City's basic financial statements. The
basic financial statements include three major sections: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund
financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information to provide additional information that our readers can use to analyze our
finances.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide our readers with an overview of the
City's finances, presenting all funds in a more simplified format. This section is similar to financial
reporting used by private - sector business

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all the City's assets and liabilities, including long-
term debt and capital assets in the governmental funds. The difference between assets and liabilities is
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as transactions occur, regardless
of when the related cash flows are reported. Therefore, some revenues and expenses included in this
statement may reflect cash flows that actually occur in future fiscal period.

Government-wide statements are separated into two major categories: 1) govermiental activities that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and 2) business-type activities that are
supported with user fees and charges. Governmental activities include administrative functions, streets,
police, and fire protection, sanitation, and community programs. Business-type activities include the
water and sewer utilities.

The government-wide statements are found on pages 10 and 11 of the report.

Fund Financial Statements

Funds are used in governmental accounting to separate resources that are designed for specific programs
or activities. The City of Lancaster, like other state and local governments uses fund accounting to
demonstrate compliance with the laws, regulations, and contractual agreements that establish the authority
for the City's programs and services. Governments use three types of funds: governmental, proprietary,
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's basic services, the same services that are included
in the governmental activities on the government-wide statements. However, the information in the fund
statements is measured differently. Governmental funds focus on current financial resources rather than
economic resources. Therefore, the statements include the short-term resources, such as cash,
investments, receivables that will be collected in the next few months, and liabilities that will be retired
with these monies. This information is important for assessing the City's current financial resources.

The reconciliation in the fund statements explains the difference between the governmental funds in the
fund statements and the governmental activities found in the government-wide financial statements.
These reconciliations are presented on pages 12 and 14 in the fund statements. These reconciliations will
explain the adjustments necessary to add the long-term resources and liabilities for the government-wide
statements to the current picture presented in the fund statements.

Lancaster maintains four individual governmental funds. Major governmental funds include the General
Fund (when includes the Garbage Fund and the Insurance Tax Account) and Municipal Road Aid. The
Municipal Road Aid Fund is presented as a major fund this year because it includes significant grant
funding from the Commonwealth of Kentucky that provided critical resources for our community.



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

The larger funds are presented on pages 13, 18 and 19 as major funds, while the nonmajor fund is
presented on page 13. The governmental fund statements include a balance sheet and statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.

Lancaster adopts budgets for all funds in accordance with Kentucky Revised Statues Section 91A.030.
The budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Municipal Road Aid Fund, are presented after the
basic financial statements. Budgetary comparisons for other applicable funds are presented as
Supplementary Information.

Lancaster's proprietary funds include two enterprise funds. The enterprise funds include operations for
the water and sewer utilities. The Water and Sewer funds are the only major funds in the proprietary fund
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the information included
in the financial schedules. Notes provide additional details about the balances and transactions in the
City's financial statements and are presented on pages 20 through 32.

Other Information

The last section of this report includes supplementary information. Supplementary Information (pages 33
through 47) is presented to expand the City's financial presentations. The City of Lancaster has elected to
include the budgetary comparisons for General and Municipal Aid with the basic financial statements so
that the auditors will provide an opinion on this information. Management's Discussion and Analysis is
classified as required supplementary information.

Supplementary information includes the combining statements for the nonmajor funds and budgetary
comparisons for certain other special revenue funds. All applicable funds are budgeted on the modified
accrual basis. The budgetary comparison schedules in the Supplementary Information are presented to
demonstrate compliance with the legally adopted budget.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
The first statement in the government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Assets. Let's review some
of the more important issues in this statement. The following table summarizes the Statement of Net

Assets (pagel0).
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Net Assets of Governmental and Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2007 (in thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government

Current and other assets $ 682 $ 1,362 $ 2,044
Capital assets 1,156 0,972 8,128
Total assets 1,838 8,334 10,172
Long-term debt outstanding (162) (2,528) (2,690)
Other liabilities (3% (110) (145)
Total liabilities (197) (2,638) (2.835)
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of debt 994 4,445 5,439
Restricted 187 252 439
Unrestricted (deficit) 460 999 1,459
Total Net Assets 5 1,641 $ 5,696 $7.337

$439 thousand of the City's net assets (page 10) are restricted to comply with provisions of various laws,
regulations, and contractual agreements. Restricted funds in the governmental activities column include
funds set aside for capital improvements. Restricted funds in the business-type activities reflect the
reserves required by the water and sewer bond indentures.

Since the City is a Phase III government (revenues less than $10 million per year), it is not required to
report infrastructure retroactively. Therefore, the City will prospectively report newly acquired or
constructed general infrastructure assets in the statement of net assets in the period they acquire or
construct these assets.

The second statement in the government-wide statements is the Statement of Activities. The following
table outlines the major components of this statement.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Operating Results for the Year Ended June 30, 2007
(in thousands)

Governmental Business-type  Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 259 $1,420 $ 1,679
Grant Funding & Contributions 202 744 946
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 796 796
Utility Franchise Fees 62 62
License Fees and Permits 24 24
Interest Earnings 13 31 44
Miscellaneous 72 72
Total Revenues 1,428 2,195 3,623
Program Expenses:
General Government 374 374
Public Safety 664 664
Sanitation 271 271
Streets 150 150
Water 930 930
Sewer System 493 493
Total Expenses 1,459 1,423 2,882
Excess (deficiency) before transfers
and special items (3D 772 741
Transfers -0- -0- -0-
Increase (decrease) in net assets $_ 31 $ 772 _§ 741

Governmental services are financed with property taxes, utility franchise fees, license fees, and interest
earnings totaling § 896,000. The net change in governmental net assets was a decrease of § 31,000. This
decrease was due partially to the City spending $§ 180,000 refurbishing the new Billy C. Moss Municipal
Building.

Property taxes increased slightly over the previous year due to increased property development within the
City. Insurance tax revenue increased § 13,000 from the previous year. License fees and permits increased

$ 9,000, while utility franchise fees decreased $ 12,000.

With revenue being about the same as the prior year end and expenses being up, the General Fund change
in Net Assets decrease of § 31,000 for the fiscal year is a concern and that needs to be addressed.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by only § 28,000 after deducting § 744,000 in grant
funds for the water distribution project. The water fund had a profit of $ 28,800, while the sewer fund
had a loss of $ 800. The water fund has a new $ 420,000 bond issue it must start paying on during this
current fiscal year. The current utility rates were not sufficient to support the current operating expenses.
Therefore, the City had a rate increase for water and sewer customers in March 2007.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

The fund statements present the City's financial information in a more detailed format, but there are other
differences as well. Fund statements provide important information about the City's compliance with
laws and regulations that define the local government environment in Kentucky. The measurement
principles in the governmental fund statements are also different than the government-wide statements.
Fund statements focus on current resources, while the government-wide statements present the long-term

view.

Financial information for the City's governmental funds is summarized on pages 12 - 14. Governmental
fund balances decreased $ 31,000 is due to expenditures exceeding revenues.

There is one nonmajor fund that had no activity during the fiscal year ended.

The fund statements for the proprietary funds look much like the business-type activities in the
government-wide statements. Proprietary fund financial information is measured with the same
principles used by private - sector business, so this information does not change from the fund statements
to the government-wide statements.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Budgetary comparison schedules include information about both the original budget and the amended

budget. Generally, budgets are amended to add projects that were not anticipated when the budget was
first adopted. Revenue budgets are usually estimated lower to allow budgetary flexibility for additional
projects.

During the fiscal year the City did a good job estimating revenue and expenditures and, for the most part,
staying within the budget.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
The City invests substantial resources in capital assets that support the services provided to the public.
All of the City's outstanding bonds and capital leases have been used to acquire or construct capital assets.

New Municipal Building
The City received a building from Christian Care Center of Lancaster, Inc. on June 27, 2006. The value

of the contributed property was $760,000 for charitable donation purposes. However, the City's insurance
carrier had the building appraised for replacement cost for $1,550,000. The City moved its entire
operations to this building on October 25, 2006. The City named the building the Billy C. Moss
Municipal Building after its mayor's 38 years of service. The City spent approximately $180,000
renovating this building.



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Capital Assets
The City's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation are sununarized below:

City of Lancaster, Kentucky Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Land $ $ 51,042 $ 51,042
Property and Plant 921,215 6,571,712 7,492,927
Equipment and Vehicles 235,258 349,571 584,829
Infrastructure -0- -0- -0-
Total $ 1,156,473 $6.,972.325 $ 8,128,798

Long Term Debt
The principal outstanding on the City's long-term debt is summarized in the following table.

City of Lancaster's Outstanding Debt

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Notes Payable Local Bank $ 162,365 $ 162,365
Series 1976 Revenue Bonds $ 191,000 191,000
Series 1988 Revenue Bonds 987,000 987,000
Series 2000 Revenue Bonds 565,000 565,000
Series 2005 Revenue Bonds 420,000 420,000
KIA Loan 364,646 364,646
Total § 162,365 $ 2,527,646 $ 2,690,011

The Outlook for Next Year
WATER DISTRIBUTION PROJECT

The City of Lancaster completed a $1.6 million Water Distribution Improvement Project. The project
involved a Community Development Block Grant for $595,000 from the Department of Local
Government. It also included additional financing and grants from Kentucky Infrastructure Authority
(K.ILA.) and Rural Development. This project was completed on August 15, 2007. This project required
the City to raise the water rates in 2007.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City of
Lancaster's Office, 308 West Maple Avenue, Lancaster, KY 40444, telephone number (859) 792-2241.

L) ~



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Net of Accumulated Depreciation

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Customer Deposits
Accrued Interest
Bonds, Notes and Loan Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities
Bonds, Notes and Loan Payable

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted For:
Infrastructure
Other Purposes
Bond Reserves
Depreciation Reserves
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Primary Government

Government

Activities
$ 442 525
49,831

492,356

189,086

1,156,473
1,345,559

1,837,915

34,748

162,365

197,113

-0-
-0-

197,113

994,108
186,650

25
460,019

$1.640,802

Business-Type

Activities
$ 973,620
135,904

1,109,524

252,440

6,972,325
7.224.765
8,334,289
47,263
37,595
25,445
97,727

208,030

2,429,919
2,429,919

2,637,949

4,444,679

61,754

190,686
999,221

$5.696,340

Total
$ 1,416,145
185,735

1,601,880

441,526

8,128,798
8.570,324
10.172,204
82,011
37,595
25,445
260,092

405,143

2,429,919
2,429,919

2,835,062

5,438,787

186,650
25

61,754
190,686
1,459,240

$_7.337,142
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

PROGRAM REVENUES NET (EXPENSE) REVENUES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES FOR GRANTS AND GRANTS AND GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS -TYPE
TUNCTIONS/ PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
SOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
General Government $ (373,765) $ (373,765) $ (373,765)
Public Safety (664,691) ¥ 62,843 {601,848) {601.,848)
Sanitation (270,779) 3 259,618 (11.160) (11,161
Streets (150.397) 139.184 (11.213) ' (11.213)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES  (1.459,632) 259,618 202,027 (997,987) (997.987)
SUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Water {930,385} 954,762 5444269 3 468.646 468,646
Sewer (493.912) 465,845 299,555 271,488 271,488
TOTAL BUSINESS - TYPE ACTIVITIES  (1.424.297) 1.420.607 743.824 740,134 740.134
‘OTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $(2.883,929) $1.680.225 $202.027 $743.824 $_(997.987) $_740.134 $_(257.853)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Property taxes, levied for General Proposes 3 796,557 3 $ 796,557
Utility Franchise Fees 62,345 62,345
License Fees and Permits 24,023 24,023
Interest Earnings 12,992 31,850 44,842
Miscellaneous 71,348 71,348
Transfers -0- -0- -0-
Total General Revenues, Special Items and Transfers 967.265 31.850 999.115
Change in Net Assets (30,722) 771,984 741,262
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 1.671.524 4.924.356 6.595.880
NET ASSETS - ENDING $1.640,802 $5.696,340 $7.337.142

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
BALANCE SHEETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

Municipal
General Road Aid

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $442,525 $ -Q-
Restricted Cash (- 189,061
Accounts Receivable 49 831 -0-
TOTAL ASSETS 492,356 189,061
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 32,337 2,411
TOTAL LIABILITIES 32,337 2,411

FUND BALANCES
Reserved For:

Infrastructure -0- 186,650
Special Projects -0- -0-
Unreserved 460,019 -0-
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 460,019 186,650
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $492.356 $189.061

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
Net assets are different because:

Capital assets (net of depreciation) used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and
therefore not reported in the funds.

Net Assets of Governmental Activities.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total
Nonmajor Governmental
Funds Funds
§ 442,525
$ 25 189,086
o 49,831
25 681,442
-0- 34,748
-0- 34,748
-0~ 186,650
25 25
-0- 460,019
25 646,694

525 $_68144

$ 646,694

1,156,473

(162,365)

$1,640.802
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

REVENUES
Taxes
Utility Franchise Fees
Licenses and Permits
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental Revenues
Investiment Earnings
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:

General Government
Public Safety:

Police

Fire
Sanitation Department
Street Department
Debt Service

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Financing

Capital Qutlays, General Government
Capital Outlays, Fire Department

NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING
FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Total

Municipal Nonmajor Governmental
General Road Aid Funds Funds
$ 796,557 $ $ § 796,557
62,345 62,345
24,023 24,023
259,618 259,618
62,843 57,645 120,488
7,971 5,021 12,992
71,348 81,539 -0- 152,887
1,284,705 144,205 -0- 1,428,910
318,275 318,275
509,766 509,766
139,863 139,863
260,800 260,800
150,397 150,397
75,432 75,432
1,304,136 150,397 -0- 1,454,533
100,000 100,000
(180,978) (180,978)
(11,825) (11,825)
(92,803) (92,803)
(112,234) (6,192) -0- (118,426)
572,253 192,842 25 765,120
$_460,019 $186,650 $_25 $_0646,694

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2007

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $(118,426)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation

in the current period. 112,272

The proceeds of debt issuance provide current financial resources

to governmental funds, but the issuing debt increases long-term

liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of the debt

principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but repayment

reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This

is the amount by which debt principal was reduced. 75,432

The proceeds of debt issuance provide current financial resources
to governmental funds, but the issuing debt increases long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Increase in debt principal
is a revenue in the governmental funds, but addition increases
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the

amount by which debt principal was increased. (100,000)
Change of Net Assets of Governmental Activities $_(30,722)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2007

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, Net

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Capital Assets, Net

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Customer Deposits
Accrued Interest
Bonds, Notes and Loan Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-Current Liabilities:
Bonds, Notes and Loan Payable

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt

Restricted For:
Bond Reserves
Depreciation Reserves
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Water &
Sewer Funds

$ 973,620
135,904

1,109,524

252,440

11,450,447
1,862,690

(6,340,812)
6,972,325
7,224,765

$ 8,334,289

47,263
37,595
25,445
97,727

208,030

2,429,919
2,429,919

2,637,549

4,444,679

61,754
190,686
_999.221

$.5.696.340

Total
Proprietary
Funds

$ 973.620
135,904

1,109,524

252,440

11,450,447
1,862,690
(6,340,812)

6,972,325
7,224,765

$ 8,334,289

47,263
37,595
25,445
97,727

208,030

2,429,919
2,429,919

2,637,949

4,444,679

61,754
190,686
999,221

5.5.696.340
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charge for Services
Connecting Fees
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water Services
Sewer Services
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense, K I A
Interest Expense, Rural Development
Capital Grants
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
NET INCOME BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Transfers In
Transfers Out

Change in Net Assets
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Water &

Sewer Funds

$1,349,676
22,175
48,756
1,420,607
696,656
339,398
285,056
1,321,110
99,497
31,850
(6,704)
(96,483)
743,824
672,487
771,984

-0-
-0-

771,984
4,924,356

$5,696.340
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Total

Proprietary

Funds
$1,349,676
22,175
48,756
1,420,607
696,656
339,398
285,056
1,321,110
99,497
31,850
(6,704)
(96,483)
743,824
672,487
771,984

-0-
-0-

771,984
4,924,356

$5.696.340



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments to Employees
Other Operating Revenues

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating Transfers Out
Operating Transfers In

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
Principal Paid on Revenue Bonds
Interest Paid on Revenue Bonds

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received on Cash Invested

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Profit

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Customer Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Liabilities
Total Adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Water &
Sewer Funds

$1,325,807
(709,032)
(316,884)
70,931
370,822

-0-
-0-

-0-

(49,411)
(90,050)

(98,971)
(238,432)

31,850
164,240
1,061,820

$1,226,060

$ 99,497

285,056

(29,479)
10,138
5,610
-0-

(13,731)
$_370.822

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Total
Proprietary
Funds

$1,325,807
(709,032)
(316,884)
70,931

370,822

(49,411)
(90,050)

(98,971)

(234,832)

31,850
164,240
1,061,820

$1,226,060

$ 99,497

285,056

(29,479)
10,138
5,610
-0-

(13,731)

$_370,822



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavor.)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 786,000 $ 786,000 $ 796,557 $ 10,557
Utility Franchise Fees 65,000 65,000 62,345 (2,655)
Licenses and Permits 24,000 24,000 24,023 23
Charges For Services 272,000 272,000 259,618 (12,382)
Intergovernmental Revenues 54,000 54,000 62,843 8,843
Investment Earnings 1,150 1,150 7,971 6,821
Other 70,000 70,000 71,348 1,348
TOTAL REVENUES 1,272,150 1,272,150 1,284,705 12,555
EXPENDITURES
Current Operating:
General Government 254,700 254,700 318,275 (63,575)
Public Safety:
Police : 520,450 520,450 509,766 10,684
Fire 142,000 142,000 139,863 2,137
Sanitation Department 260,000 260,000 260,800 (800)
Debt Service
Principal 70,000 70,000 75,432 (5,432)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,247,150 1,247,150 1,304,136 (56,986)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Financing 100,000 100,000 100,000 -0-
Capital Outlays, General Government (100,000) (100,000) (180,978) (80,978)
Capital Outlays, Fire Department (25,000) (25,000) (11,825) 13,175
(25,000) (25,000) (92,803) (67,803)
Net Changes in Fund Balances $ -0- $ -0- (112,234) $(112.234)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 572,253
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $_460.019

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Page 18



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MUNICIPAL ROAD AID
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual {(Unfavor.)
REVENUES
Prior Year Fund Balance
Appropriated For Current Year Budget $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ $(40,000)
Municipal Road Aid 60,000 60,000 57,645 (2,355)
State Grants 49,385 49,385 79,694 30,309
Interest 150 150 5,021 4,871
Miscellaneous Income 1,000 1,000 1,845 845
TOTAL REVENUES 150,535 150,535 144,205 (6,330)
EXPENDITURES
Administration 4,000 4,000 4,000 -0-
Streets 136,535 136,535 134,279 2,256
Capital Outlay 10,000 10,000 12,118 (2,118)
Contingency -0- -0- -0- -0-
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 150,535 150,535 150,397 138
Excess (Deficiency) Revenue Over Expenditures $ -0- $ -0- (6,192) $_(6,192)
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 192,842
FUND BALANCE - ENDING $186,650

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.
The more significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Lancaster, Kentucky (the "City") was incorporated on February 23, 1837, under the provisions of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The City operates under a Mayor-Council form of government and provides
the following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), streets, sanitation, planning
and zoning, and general administrative services. Other services include water and sewer operations. The City
has evaluated various organizations with which it is related and determined that there are no component units
as defined in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 14. Therefore, there are no component
units included in the City's reporting entity.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net
assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part,
the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest revenue, intergovernmental revenue, and charges for services
are considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Fines, permits, parking meter revenues and special assessments are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the government.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund includes the
garbage fund and the insurance tax account.

The municipal road aid fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures of funds related to the Kentucky
Street Improvement Program.

The government reports the following major proprietary fund:

The water and sewer fund accounts for the activities of the utility services provided to the residents of the City
and the surrounding areas.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December [, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. An exception to this general rule was a payment from the municipal road aid fund to the general
fund to compensate the general fund for administrative services provided to the municipal road aid fund.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the water and sewer fund
are charges to customers for sales and services. The water and sewer fund also recognizes as operating
revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, liabilities, and net assets of equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments in certificates of deposits.

The City does not have any investments at June 30, 2007.

2. Receivables and Payables

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable financial resources.

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

3. Inventory

Inventory of supplies and materials is charged to expenditures when purchased. Therefore, the City does not
have any inventory to report.

4. Restricted Assets

Certain resources set aside for the repayment of the water and sewer fund debt have been classified as
restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants. The restricted assets have been accounted for in accordance with the
provisions of the Water and Sewer Fund revenue bond resolutions or with state or federal laws and regulations.

Depreciation Reserve-Revenue bond covenants require the City to transfer annually $5,652 to a Depreciation
Reserve until $114,612 is accumulated in the account. Also, Kentucky Infrastructure Authority covenants
require the City to transfer annually $4,750 to a Depreciation Reserve until $39,073 is accumulated in the
account. The City made its final payment on October 1, 2007.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. The City has
elected to prospectively report newly acquired or constructed general infrastructure assets, pursuant to the
provisions of GASB Statement 34.

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where
historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. Donated
fixed assets are valued at fair market value on the date received.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives
of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

Property, plant, and equipment of the government is depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives.

Buildings 20 - 50 Years
[mprovements 10 - 20 Years
Plant in Service 10 - 50 Years
Machinery & Equipment 5 - 10 Years

Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part
of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

6. Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Sick Pay

Accumulated unpaid vacation and sick pay have not been accrued because the employees have no vested or
accumulated rights.

7. Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets.

8. Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are
not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

9. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balances in the governmental
funds and net assets reported in the government-wide statements. These adjustments reflect the changes
necessary to report the governmental fund balances on the economic resources measurement focus and
accrual basis of accounting. Capital assets and long-term debt are added to the governmental funds to
compile the long-term view of the governmental activities column.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

A similar reconciliation is included on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
for the governmental funds. These adjustments reflect the transition from the modified accrual accounting
for governmental funds to the accrual basis of accounting for the statement of activities. Capital outlay is
replaced with depreciation expense. Capital lease revenues are added, while principal payments on long-
term debt are eliminated from the operating costs.

NOTE 11 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

1. Budgetary Information

The City follows the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

Kentucky Revised Statutes requires the preparation and adoption of an annual budget in the form of an
appropriations ordinance before the City may expend any monies from any governmental or proprietary fund
and prohibits expenditures or expenses in excess of appropriations. KRS further provides that the full
amount of debt service be appropriated. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

To meet the legal requirements for appropriations, all budgets are presented on a modified accrual basis.
For proprietary funds this means that certain capitalized receipts and disbursements are budgeted along with
related revenue and expense, that depreciation, a non-cash expenditure, is not budgeted, and that the full
amount of debt service is budgeted.

Under Kentucky Revised Statutes, all local government units are required to have a June 30 fiscal year-end.
The City of Lancaster has a June 30 fiscal year-end.

An encumbrance systemn under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of monies are recorded is maintained.

Encumbrances maintained at year-end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.  Encumbrances
outstanding at year-end are re-appropriated in the next budget year.

2. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. For the year ended. June 30,
2007, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the Municipal Road Aid Fund. These excess expenditures
were funded by available fund balances or operating transfers.

3. Deficit Fund Equity

None of the funds had a deficit fund balance as of June 30, 2007.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE III - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

The City is required by Kentucky Revised Statutes to have the financial institution pledge securities having a
current quoted market value at least equal to the uninsured deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of
the City's deposits was $1,857,671 and the bank balance was $1,916,955. Of the bank balance $200,000
was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by the City in the City's name, and
$1,868,741 was covered by collateral held in the pledging bank's trust department in the City's name.

Investments

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the government-wide Statement of Net Assets is as
follows:

Carrying amount of deposits $ 1,857,671
Carrying amount of investments -0-
Total $ 1.857.671
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,416,145
Investments -0-
Cash and cash equivalents-restricted 441,526
Total $ 1,857,671

NOTE IV- PROPERTY TAXES

The City bills and collects its own property taxes. The City elects to use annual property assessments
prepared by the Garrard County Property Valuation Administrator. According to the Kentucky Revised
Statutes, the assessment date for the City must conform to the assessment date of Garrard County. Effective
for the year ended June 30, 2008, the Garrard County Sheriff's Office will collect the property tax for the
City and remit them monthly.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, taxes were levied November |, 2006, and were payable by December 31,
2006. A 2% penalty was imposed on all taxes delinquent as of January 1, 2007, and a 10% penalty was
imposed on all taxes delinquent as of February 1, 2007.

City tax rates were 15 cents per $100 on real property and 25 cents per $100 on personal property for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE V - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2007 was as follows:

Governmental activities:
Land & buildings
Equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Totals at historical cost
Buildings
Equipment & vehicles
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-Type Activities:
Land
Water and Sewer Plant
Equipment
Vehicles

Totals at Historical Cost
Water and Sewer Plant
Equipment

Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government
Public Services
Public Safety

Business-type activities:
Water
Sewer

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 760,000 $ 180,977 § -0 $ 940,977
362,370 11,825 -0- 374,195
-0- -0- -0- -0-
1,122,370 192,802 -0- 1,315,172
-0- (19,762) (19,762)
(78,168) (60,769) -0- (138,937)
-0- -0- -0- -0-
(78,168) (80,531) -0- (158,699)
$.1.044.202 $ 112,271 $_-0- $1,156,473
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
$ 51,042 $ -0- $ -0- $ 51,042
11,168,999 638,160 -0- 11,807,159
1,013,149 312,882 -0- 1,326,031
128,905 -0- _-0- 128,905
12,362,095 951,042 -0- 13,313,137
(4,974,751) (260,696) -0- (5,235,447)
(974,396) (15,715) -()- (990,111)
(106,609) (8,645) _-0- (115,254)
(6,055,756) (285,056) _-0- (6,340,812)
$6.306,339 $ 665,986 §_-0- $6,972,325

$ 55,490
9,979
15,062

$__80,531

$ 180,921
104,135
$.285,056

Naw- VL



CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE VI - INTER-FUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The composition of inter-fund balances as of June 30, 2007, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds:

Payable Fund Receivable Fund Amount
None None $ -0-

NOTE VII - PENSION AND OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City participates in two statewide local government retirement systems. Both are multiple-employer,
cost-sharing public employee pension plans. One plan, the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees'
Retirement System for Hazardous Position Employees (CERSH) covers all hazardous position public safety
employees. The other plan, the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for
Non-Hazardous Position Employees (CERSNH) covers all government employees not covered by the
CERSH. Certain medical insurance benefits are provided to retirees covered by the CERSH and CERSNH.

A. COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FOR
NON-HAZARDOUS POSITION EMPLOYEES (CERSNH)

1. Plan Description

The City contributes to the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for Non-
Hazardous Employees (CERSNH) for all the City's full-time employees not covered by the CERSH. The
CERSNH is a cost sharing, multiple-employer defined benefits pension plan administered by the Kentucky
Retirement Systems. CERSNH provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to members
and beneficiaries. Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the state legislature. The
Kentucky Retirement Systems issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplemental information for CERSNH. That report may be obtained by writing Kentucky
Retirement Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 or by calling
502-564-4646.

2. Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 5% of their annual salaries and the City is required to contribute an
actuarially determined amount. The current rate is 13.19% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the KRS Board of
Trustees. The City's contributions for the years ending June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were $55,285,
$72,527, and $57,847, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

B. COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM FOR
HAZARDOUS POSITION EMPLOYEES (CERSH)

1. Plan Description

The City contributes to the Commonwealth of Kentucky County Employees' Retirement System for
Hazardous Employees (CERSH) for all of the City's full-time hazardous position public safety employees.
The CERSH is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefits pension plan administered by the
Kentucky Retirement Systems. CERSH provides retirement and disability benefits and death benefits to
members and beneficiaries.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the State legislature. The Kentucky Retirement
Systems issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplemental information for CERSH. This report may be obtained by writing Kentucky Retirement
Systems, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville Road, Frankfort, Kentucky or by calling 502-564-4646.

2. Funding Policy

Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their annual salaries and the City is required to contribute an
actuarially determined amount. The current rate is 28.21% of annual covered payroll. The contribution
requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be amended by the KRS Board of
Trustees. The City's contributions for the years ending June 30, 2005, 2006, and 2007 were $67,727,
$74,171, and $89,404, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

NOTE VIII - BOND RETIREMENT SCHEDULE WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS

ISSUE OF 1976

Date of Issue

Rate of Interest

Date Bonds Due

Date Interest Due

Call Provisions

Amount of Original Issue
Outstanding June 30, 2007

ISSUE OF 1988

Date of Issue

Rate of Interest

Date Bonds Due

Date Interest Due

Amount of Original Issue
Outstanding June 30, 2007

ISSUE OF 2000

Date of Issue

Rate of Interest

Date Bonds Due

Date Interest Due

Amount of Original Issue
Outstanding June 30, 2007

ISSUE OF 2005 A AND B
Date of Issue

Rate of Interest

Date Bonds Due

Date Interest Due

Amount of Original Issue
Outstanding June 30, 2007

April 1, 1976

5%

April 1

October 1 and April 1

On or After April 1, 1987 @ Par
$ 455,000.00

$ 191,000.00

November 30, 1988
5%

April 1

October 1 and April 1
$ 1,300,000.00

$ 987,000.00

December 1, 2001
4.375%

April 1

October 1 and April 1
$ 600,000.00

$ 565,000.00

November 28, 2006
4.375% and 4.25%
April |

October | and April |
$250,000 and $170,000
$250,000 and $170,000



COMPOSITE BOND AND INTEREST SCHEDULE

WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS

Fis. Yr. Series of 1976
Ending Apr.1 Oct. & Apr.
June 30 Bonds Interest
2008 17,000 9,550
2009 18,000 8,700
2010 19,000 7,800
2011 20,000 6,850
2012 21,000 5,850
2013 22.000 4,800
2014 23,000 3,700
2015 25,000 2,550
2016 26,000 1,300
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-45

$_191.000 $ 51,100

CITY OF LANCAS1. .., KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2007
Series of 1988 Series of 2000 Series of 2005 A
Apr.1 Oct. & Apr. 1 Apr.1 Oct. & Apr. 1 Apr. 1 Oct. & Apr. 1
Bonds Interest Bonds Interest Bonds Interest
28,000 49,350 8,000 24,719 2,600 10,938
29,000 47,950 8,500 24,369 2,700 10,824
31,000 46,500 8,500 23,997 2,800 10,706
32,000 44 950 9,000 23,625 3,000 10,583
34,000 43,350 9,500 23,231 3,100 10,452
35,000 41,650 10,000 22,816 3,200 10,316
37,000 39,900 10,000 22.378 3,400 10,176
39,000 38,050 11,000 21,941 3,500 10,028
41,000 36,100 11,000 21,459 3,700 9,874
43,000 34,050 12,000 20,978 3,900 9,713
45,000 31,900 12,000 20,453 4,000 9,542
47,000 29,650 13,000 19,928 4,200 9,367
50,000 27,300 13,000 19,359 4,400 9,183
496,000 117,900 429,500 223,716 205,500 137,271
$ 987.000 $_628.600 $_565,000 $ 512.969 $_250.000 $_268.973



CITY OF LANCAS:. &, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2007
COMPOSITE BOND AND INTEREST SCHEDULE
WATER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS

Fis. Yr. Series of 2005 B

Ending Apr.1 Oct. & Apr. Total Due Payments Bond

June 30 Bonds Interest Bonds Interest Required Balance
2008 1,900 7,225 57,500 101,782 159,282 2,105,500
2009 2,000 7,145 60,200 98,988 156,688 2,045,300
2010 2,000 7,060 63,300 96,063 159,863 1,882,000
2011 2,100 6,975 66,100 92,983 159,083 1,915,900
2012 2,200 6,885 69,800 89,768 159,568 1,846,100
2013 2,300 6,792 72,500 86,374 158.874 1.773.600
2014 2,400 6,694 75,800 82,848 158,648 1,697,800
2015 2.500 6,592 81,000 79,161 160,161 1,616,800
2016 2,600 6,486 84,300 75,219 159,519 1,532,500
2017 2,700 6,375 61.600 71,116 132,716 1,470,900
2018 2,300 6,261 63,800 68,156 131,756 1,407,100
2019 3,000 6,142 67.200 65,087 132,287 1,339,900
2020 3,100 6,014 70,500 61,856 132,356 1,269,400
2021-45 138,400 88,864 1,269,400 567,751 1,837,151 -0)-

$_170.000 $_175,510 $2.163.000 $1,637,152 33.797.952




CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

A. BOND COVENANTS AND PROVISIONS

Under the bond Ordinance passed April 1, 1976 for the Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, certain covenants and
provisions for the collection, segregation, and distribution of revenues of the water and sewer system were

established.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City is in compliance with all covenants and provisions discussed
above,

The Water Fund has obtained a new bond issue for a Water Distribution System Improvement Project from Rural
Utilities Service (RUS). The amount owed at June 30, 2007 was $420,000.

NOTE IX - (WATER AND SEWER FUND) KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY LOAN

A.  On December 1, 1995, the City enfered into an agreement with the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to
borrow $781,462 with an interest rate of 1.7% to be repaid over a 20-year period. The proceeds of this loan are
being used to fund an expansion of the City's Wastewater Treatment Plant. The annual principal and interest
requirements of the above loan are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest  Total Payment

2008 40,227 6,738 46,965
2009 40,913 5,970 46,883
2010 41,612 5,190 46,802
2011 42,323 4,395 46,718
2012 43,045 3,588 46,633
2013-2015 156,526 5,992 162,518

$ 364,646 $.31,873 $.396,519

B. Certain covenants contained in the above loan agreement are as follows;

1. The City shall maintain service charges for water and sewer activities sufficient to pay the Authority the
minimum sums set forth in the loan agreement.

2. The City shall place $4,750 into a ‘"replacement reserve account” on or before December |
of each year. These annual deposits are to be made until the balance reaches $39,073 and maintained for the
life of the loan. The final payment was made October 1, 2007.

3. Other Miscellaneous provisions.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the City is in substantial compliance with all covenants and provisions
discussed above.

This loan is subordinate to any previous debt of the City, including U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural
Development debt.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2007

NOTE X - GENERAL FUND NOTES PAYABLE

Note payable owed to local bank, secured by seven Police Cruisers, payable in
annual payment of principal, plus interest at prime rate.

Note matures November 25, 2007 and was paid in full on November 14, 2007.
General Fund § 70,934

Note payable owed to local bank, secured by the Billy C. Moss Municipal Building,
payable in monthly payments of $1,996 principal, plus interest at 7.25%.

This Note was paid in full on September 11, 2007.
General Fund 91,431

Total General Fund - Current Debt $162.365

NOTE XI - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a
liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE XII - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Lancaster is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and workers' compensation claims. Significant losses are covered
by commercial insurance for all major programs except unemployment compensation and workers' compensation,
for which the City retains risk of loss. For insured programs, there have been no significant reductions in
insurance coverage from prior years. Also, there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage for
each of the past three years. The City participates in two pooled self-insurance programs sponsored by the
Kentucky League of Cities. These include unemployment compensation and workers' compensation.

See Schedule of Insurance in Supplementary Information, Page 47.

NOTE XIII - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

In a governmental entity, related parties include members of the governing body (city council, etc.), board
members, administrative officials (mayor, city clerk, etc.), immediate family members of the preceding
individuals, and affiliated governmental units that are not included in the financial statements as part of the
reporting entity such as water and sewer sysiems. There are no related party transactions to be disclosed.

NOTE XIV - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Water Department sells approximately 65% of its water to two wholesale users. The contract with these two
wholesale users runs through December 31, 2028. The price per gallon is renegotiated every year with a
guaranteed minimum purchase by the two wholesale users. The current agreement expires June 30, 2008.

NOTE XVI - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The City of Lancaster completed a $1.6 million Water Distribution System Improvement Project on August 15,
2007. The project involved a Community Development Block Grant for $595,000 and additional financing and
grants from Kentucky Infrastructure Authority and Rural Development.
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
OFFICIALS, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES

Mayor:
Clerk:

Councilpersons:

Treasurer:
City Attorney:
Chief of Police:

Policemen:

Fire Chief:

Board of Zoning:

Lancaster Municipal Housing Commission:

Disaster Emergency Services:

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Don Rinthen
Shari Lane

Jerry Domidion
Chris Davis
Jimmy Crutchfield
Jessie Wagner
Emily Whitworth
Evan Seagraves

Shari Lane
Justin Genco
Ronald Lamb

Russell Preston
Wanda Shelton
David Shepherd
L.awrence Royce

Richard Sebastian

Richard Arnold - Chairman
Lisa Domidion - Officer
Billy J. Arnold

Ralph Sebastain

Sammy Durham

David Lane

Alan Pickett

John Dixon

Harlan Bratton

Don Rinthen - Mayor

Cecil Dunn - Chairman

Lisa Smith - Executive Secretary
Connie Davidson

Carolyn Whittaker

Randy Carrier

Vacant

Allen Weston
Steve Slone
Rick Shearer
Will Lake
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
GENERAL FUND ACCOUNT
STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Actual Favorable
Budget Operations (Unfavor.)
REVENUES )
Taxes $ 224,000 $ 237,543 $ 13,543
Insurance Tax 236,500 239,140 2,640
In Lieu of Taxes - Municipal Housing 10,000 9,114, (886)
Occupational License Fees 13,000 19,818 6,818
House Bill 413 14,000 12,759 (1,241)
Arrest Fees 2,700 1,365 (1,335)
State Forfeiture -0- 9,144 9,144
Utility Franchise Fees 65,000 62,345 (2,655)
Police Training Incentive 28,000 29,910 1,910
Rent School Board -0- 28,000 28,000
Miscellaneous 6,000 13,401 7,401
Insurance Fund 140,721 140,721 -0-
Interest Income 800 743 (57
Federal and State Grants 20,649 20,649
Loan Proceeds - Building 100,000 100,000
Unobligated Surplus Funds 238,147 -0- (238,147)
TOTAL REVENUES $ 978,868 $ 924,652 $ (54,216)
EXPENDITURES
Advertising and Printing $ 2,000 $ 3472 $ (1.472)
Assessing Taxes 6,300 7,243 (943)
City Hall - Maintenance & Repairs 1,585 25,409 (23,824)
Capital Outlay -0- 180,978 (180,978)
Debt Service -0- 42,292 (42,292)
Dues & Subscriptions 1,000 1,436 (436)
Health Insurance 4,500 4,506 (6)
Insurance 42,750 44 887 (2,137)
Interest Expense -0- 7,663 (7,663)
Miscellaneous 2,702 5,512 (2,810)
Payroll Taxes - Employer 6,900 7,459 (559)
Planning and Zoning - Transfer 3,000 3,000 -0-
Police Department - Schedule 520,450 509,766 10,684
Professional Fees 1,900 1,900 -0-
Retirement Fund Contributions 5,300 6,511 (1,211)
Salaries and Wages 82,000 90,617 (8,617)
Dispatchers - 911 38,424 38,424 -0~
Supplies - Office and Equipment 3,000 2,809 191
Telephone 2,500 2,607 (107)
Travel 5,200 5,220 (20)
Utilities 45,000 55,706 (10,706)
Contingency 204,357 -0- 204,357
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 978,868 $1,047,417 $ (68,549)
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES $ -0- (122,765) $(122.765)
FUND SURPLUS - July 1, 2006 307,957
FUND SURPLUS - June 30, 2007 $_ 185,192
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CITY OF LANCASTER, KENTUCKY
GENERAL FUND - POLICE
DEPARTMENT ACCOUNT

STATEMENT OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2007

Variance
Actual Favorable
Budget Operations (Unfavor.)
REVENUES
Advance from General Fund $520,450 $509,766 $(10,684)
EXPENDITURES
Advertising & Printing 1,000 831 169
Communications -0- -0- -0-
Computer Services 3,000 3,871 (871)
Cruiser Gas 18,000 19,022 (1,022)
Cruiser Maintenance 4,000 8,053 (4,053)
Equipment - Emerge